Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes

Lleoliad: | gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Lleoliad Allanol Gareth Price

Dyddiad: Dydd lau, 28 lonawr 2016 Clerc y Pwyllgor

Amser: 08.45 0300 200 6565

SeneddBusnes@Cynulliad.Cymru

Prifysgol Glyndwr, Wrecsam

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat
(08.45-09.00)

1  Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon

2 Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Dyfodol Seilwaith y
Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru
(Tudalennau 1 - 35)
Dogfennau atodol:
Cefndir a Chylch Gorchwyl yr Ymchwiliad i Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd
Y Briff Ymchwil

2.1 Ymchwiliad i'r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng
Nghymru - grwpiau buddiant byd busnes a'r rheilffyrdd

(09.00-10.00) (Tudalennau 36 - 64)
Iwan Prys Jones, Rheolwr Rhaglenni, Bwrdd Uchelgais Economaidd Gogledd Cymru
Rebecca Maxwell, Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol yr Economi a Pharth y Cyhoedd,
Cyngor Sir Ddinbych
Y Cynghorydd Pat Hackett, Cadeirydd Cynghrair Mersi a'r Ddyfrdwy
Jim Steer, Cyfarwyddwr, Greengauge 21

fv' Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



Dogfennau atodol:

EBC(4)-03-16 (p.1) Tystiolaeth gan Fwrdd Uchelgais Economaidd Gogledd Cymru
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.2) Tystiolaeth gan Gynghrair Mersi a'r Ddyfrdwy (Saesneg yn
unig)

EBC(4)-03-16 (p.4) Tystiolaeth gan Gyngor Gorllewin Swydd Gaer a Chaer
(Saesneg yn unig)

EBC(4)-03-16 (p.5) Tystiolaeth gan Greengauge 21 (Saesneg yn unig)
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.3) Tystiolaeth gan Merseytravel (Saesneg yn unig)

Egwyl
(10.00-10.15)

2.2 Ymchwiliad i’r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol seilwaith y rheilffyrdd yng
Nghymru - grwpiau buddiant cludo nwyddau

(10.15-11.00) (Tudalennau 65 - 70)
Robin C Smith, Cynrychiolydd Cymru, Rail Freight Group

Dogfennau atodol:

EBC(4)-03-16 (p.6) Tystiolaeth gan Rail Freight Group (Saesneg yn unig)

2.3 Ymchwiliad i’r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol seilwaith y rheilffyrdd yng

Nghymru - Cyrff rheilffyrdd o Ogledd Lloegr a Gorllewin Canolbarth Lloegr
(11.00-12.10) (Tudalennau 71 - 87)

Ben Still, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol Awdurdod Cyfun Dinas-ranbarth Sheffield,

Transport for the North

Pete Brunskill, Rheolwr Rhanddeiliaid (Dros Dro) Rail North Limited

Lorna McHugh, Transport for the North a Rail North Limited

Toby Rackliff, Rheolwr Polisi a Strategaeth Rheilffyrdd, West Midlands Integrated

Transport Authority a West Midlands Rail Ltd



Dogfennau atodol:

EBC(4)-3-16 (p.7) Tystiolaeth gan Rail North a Transport for the North
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.8) Gwybodaeth a ddarperir gan West Midlands Rail Ltd (Saesneg
yn unig)

Egwyl
(12.10-13.00)

2.4 Ymchwiliad i'r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol seilwaith y rheilffyrdd yng
Nghymru - cwmniau gweithredu trenau

(13.00-14.00) (Tudalennau 88 - 97)
Michael Tapscott, Cyfarwyddwr Prosiectau, Trenau Arriva Cymru
Roger Cobbe, Cyfarwyddwr Polisi, Arriva Trains UK
Richard Rowland, Cyfarwyddwr Cynghrair Rhaglen y Gorllewin a Chynllunio, Great
Western Railway

John Pockett, Rheolwr dros Gymru, Great Western Railway

Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.9) Tystiolaeth gan Drenau Arriva Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.10) Tystiolaeth gan Great Western Railway

3 Papurau i’w nodi

3.1 Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2016 - 17

(Tudalennau 98 - 105)
Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.11) Llythyr oddi wrth William Graham AC at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor
Cyllid ynghylch sesiwn y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes i Graffu ar y Gyllideb gyda'r
Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.12) Llythyr oddi wrth William Graham AC at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor
Cyllid ynghylch sesiwn y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes i Graffu ar y Gyllideb gyda



Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.13) Llythyr oddi wrth y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg yn
dilyn y sesiwn Graffu ar y Gyllideb ar 14 lonawr 2016 (Saesnheg yn unig)

3.2 Deddf Teithio Llesol (Cymru) 2013

(Tudalen 106)
Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.14) Llythyr oddi wrth Sustrans Cymru ynghylch Teithio Llesol

3.3 Dyfodol Masnachfraint Rheilffyrdd Cymru a'r Gororau

(Tudalennau 107 - 108)
Dogfennau atodol:
EBC(4)-03-16 (p.15) Llythyr oddi wrth Weinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a
Thrafnidiaeth ynghylch Masnachfraint Rheilffyrdd Cymru a'r Gororau

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y
cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod a dechrau'r cyfarfod nesaf.

5 Trafodaeth ar ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i'r Adroddiad ar

Gynlluniau Trafnidiaeth yn ystod Cwpan Rygbi'r Byd
(14.00-14.10) (Tudalennau 109 - 113)

Dogfennau atodol:
Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i'r Adroddiad ar Gynlluniau Trafnidiaeth yn ystod
Cwpan Rygbi'r Byd

Ol-drafodaeth breifat
(14.10-14.25)



Eitem 2

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 4



Eitem 2.1

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes

Enterprise and Business Committee

Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng
Nghymru

Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

WRI 15

WRI 15

Bwrdd Uchelgais Economaidd Gogledd
Cymru

North Wales Economic Ambition Board

Tudalen y pecyn 36




north wales economic ambition board
bwrdd uchelgais economaidd gogledd cymru

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
Bae Caerdydd CF99 1NA

Ymateb Bwrdd Uchelgais Economaidd Gogledd Cymru i Ymgynghoriad Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes ar vy
Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru

Mae Bwrdd Uchelgais Economaidd Gogledd Cymru (‘y Bwrdd’) yn gweithio’n glos a Llywodraeth Cymru ac mae’n gorff
sy’n cynrychioli chwe Awdurdod Lleol Gogledd Cymru, ynghyd & Chadeiryddion tri Parth Menter Gogledd Cymru,
cynrychiolwyr o’r Mersey Dee Alliance, y sector academaidd a’r Sector Preifat drwy Gyngor Busnes Gogledd Cymru.
Pwrpas y Bwrdd yw datblygu economi gogledd Cymru ac mae cael gwell cysylltedd yn ganolog er mwyn cyflawni hyn.

Nid yw’r rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd yng ngogledd Cymru wedi gweld llawer o fuddsoddiad dros y degawdau diweddar ac
mae ar ei hol hi wrth gymharu a’r rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd mewn rhannau eraill o’r Deyrnas Gyfunol, yn enwedig wrth
ystyried y buddsoddiad cyfredol a’r buddsoddiad sydd wedi’i gynllunio yng ngogledd-orllewin Lloegr. O ganlyniad i
hynny, mae rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd gogledd Cymru yn methu a chyflwyno gwasanaeth sy’n bodloni gofynion cyfredol
y farchnad; mae’n gweithredu fel rhwystr i ddatblygiad economaidd ar y ddwy ochr i’r ffin ac yn cyfrannu at dagfeydd
cynyddol ar rwydwaith ffyrdd trawsffiniol sydd dan bwysau aruthrol yn barod. Nid yw’r rheilffordd sydd ar gael yn
medru cystadlu a’r ffordd ac mae’n methu ag annog pobl i ddefnyddio cludiant cyhoeddus yn hytrach na chludiant
preifat. Ni all y sefyllfa hon barhau fel hyn. | symbylu potensial economaidd llawn y rhanbarth cyfan mae’n rhaid i'r
rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd gyflwyno gwasanaethau sy’n fwy cyflym ac aml a chynnig mwy o gapasiti er mwyn dod yn
opsiwn cludiant deniadol. Rhaid i'r rheilffyrdd gynnig gwell gwasanaethau sy’n gwella cysylltiadau a lleoliadau
allweddol sydd o bwys i economi gogledd Cymru, yn cynnwys y pyrth rhyngwladol ym meysydd awyr Manceinion,
Lerpwl a Birmingham. | gyflawni hyn, rydym angen pecyn eang o fuddsoddiadau, yn cynnwys trydaneiddio’r
rhwydwaith fel rhan greiddiol o’r dasg o drawsnewid ein rhwydwaith.

Dyma sylwadau’r Bwrdd ar y pynciau a nodwyd yn y briff Ymgynghori o safbwynt gogledd Cymru:

1. Blaenoriaethau lefel uchel ar gyfer datblygu seilwaith y rheilffyrdd i ddarparu'r capasiti a'r cysylltedd
angenrheidiol i gefnogi lles cymdeithasol ac economaidd Cymru

Mae lein rheilffordd gogledd Cymru yn goridor rheilffordd hanfodol sy’n cysylltu Iwerddon, gogledd Cymru a gogledd
Lloegr, ynghyd & marchnadoedd allweddol de-ddwyrain Lloegr a chyfandir Ewrop. Mae cael cysylltiadau gwych ledled
y rhanbarth, a chyda Llundain a’r cyfandir, yn hanfodol i symbylu twf economaidd. | hwyluso hyn, mae angen i’r
seilwaith rheilffordd yng ngogledd Cymru weld y gwelliannau a ganlyn:

"YNG ’ - CYNGOR Ciooe » W ¢
!@ a" ?EEJ%??SGI ESEY C~ %Sir e -~ Siry Flint wrex/hén
= > ISLE OF ighshi 1 H ot
—7 e COUNTY COUNCIL ONWY v Dcnblghshlre Fllntshlre

CYNGOR BWROEISTREF SIROL COUNTY COUNCIL COUNTY COUNCIL Wlt‘(\z"”

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

-_

Tudalen y pecyn 37




Gwelliannau i Gyflymder y Lein

Y cyflymder mwyaf ar Brif Lein Gogledd Cymru (PLGC) yw 90 mya, gyda sawl rhan wedi’i chyfyngu i 75mya. Mae bron i
holl y stoc cerbydau a ddefnyddir ar PLGC gyflymder mwyaf sy’n uwch na hynny: Class 221 Super Voyagers 125 mya,
Class 175 100 mya a Class 158 90 mya. Mae’r cyfyngiadau hyn ar gyflymder y brif lein yn golygu na all potensial ein
stoc cerbydau ei ddefnyddio i’r eithaf i ostwng amseroedd siwrne.

Un canlyniad i gyflymder lein cyfyngedig (ac eithrio siwrneiau i Lundain ac oddi yno), yw bod amseroedd siwrneiau i
leoliadau allweddol eraill o ogledd Cymru yn rhy faith i fedru cystadlu & dulliau cludiant eraill, e.e. Cyffordd Llandudno
— Manceinion (88 milltir) 2 awr 5 munud, Cyffordd Llandudno - Liverpool Central (61 milltir) 1 awr 50 munud, Caergybi
— Cyffordd Llandudno (40 milltir) 50 munud. (Cymharwch hyn & Manchester Piccadilly — London Euston 198 milltir 2
awr 9 munud). Er enghraifft, i fod yn fwy cystadleuol, dylai rhai gwasanaethau rhwng Cyffordd Llandudno a
Manceinion gael eu cwtogi i 90 munud.

Cynigir gwneud gwelliannau i gyflymder y lein ar PLGC fel un o’r dewisiadau ar gyfer cyllidwyr yn CP6 a dylai
Llywodraeth Cymru gefnogi bod hyn yn cael ei gynnwys yn y Cynllun Diwydiant Cychwynnol (IIP) ac yna ym Manyleb
Deilliannau Lefel Uchel (HLOS) Llywodraeth y DG ar gyfer cyfnod cynllunio nesaf y diwydiant rheilffyrdd.

Ar hyn o bryd, mae Network Rail yn tybio y bydd diweddaru signalau yn hwyluso cyflymderau mwyaf o 100mya ar
rannau o’r trac. Bydd gan drenau newydd ar gyfer masnachfreintiau newydd mewn mannau eraill y gallu i gyrraedd
cyflymder mwyaf o 120mya. Mae’r diweddariadau sydd wedi’u cynllunio ar gyfer lein gogledd Cymru yn seiliedig ar
drenau heddiw, ac nid ar drenau’r dyfodol, ac mae hyn yn cyflwyno cyfyngiad ar ddatblygiadau yn y dyfodol.

Cynyddu Capasiti

Mae angen cael mwy o gapasiti i deithwyr ar drenau a mwy o gapasiti ar yr adeg iawn i fodloni galw teithwyr ar
gyfnodau brig. Mae’r lefelau cyfredol o orlenwi ar wasanaethau brig yn atal ac yn llethu’r galw, yn enwedig ar y
gwasanaeth Llandudno — Manchester Piccadilly. Bydd cael trenau cyflymach yn cynyddu’r galw hwn ymhellach ac felly
mae angen mwy o stoc cerbydau i leihau gorlenwi.

Byddai’r gwaith uwchraddio signalau arfaethedig (ac ymrwymedig) ar hyd PLGC yn caniatau i fwy o drenau redeg gan
gynyddu capasiti, felly mae’n siomedig bod Cam 1 y gwaith uwchraddio signalau sydd wedi’i gynllunio ar gyfer rhan o
PLGC wedi’i oedi, o bosib hyd 2019. Rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru, drwy ei berthynas a Network Rail, sicrhau nad oes
unrhyw oedi pellach a bod buddion y gwaith signalau yn cael eu cyflawni cyn gynted ag y bo modd. Rhaidi Gam 2y
gwaith uwchraddio signalau rhwng Llandudno a Chaergybi barhau ar amser er mwyn cwblhau yn CP6.

Ni ellir manteisio i’r eithaf ar y gwaith uwchraddio signalau hyd oni y gwneir gwaith i wella cyflymder y lein yn ogystal.
Mae hyn yn ychwanegu at bwysigrwydd cynnwys gwneud gwelliannau i gyflymder y lein yn y HLOS ar gyfer CP6.

Os am gymryd mantais lawn o’r buddsoddiadau hyn a bod mwy o wasanaethau am gael eu rhedeg ar hyd Prif Lein
Gogledd Cymru, bydd angen mwy o stoc cerbydau. Mae’r Adran Drafnidiaeth wedi nodi y bydd yn rhaid cynllunio
masnachfraint nesaf Gogledd Cymru a’r Gororau o gwmpas y fflyd gyfredol o oddeutu 128 o drenau. Bydd hyn yn
cyfyngu ar y buddion posib a ddaw yn sgil cael mwy o gapasiti ar y rhwydwaith ac yn cyfyngu ar y capasiti i gael
gwasanaethau newydd o ogledd Cymru i Lerpwl, Manceinion a’u meysydd awyr. Mae cysylltiad uniongyrchol rhwng
buddsoddi yn seilwaith y rheilffyrdd a buddsoddi mewn stoc cerbydau addas ac mae cael un heb y llall yn gostwng
effaith y buddsoddiad yn sylweddol. Yn barod, mae Trenau Arriva Cymru wedi’i gyfyngu yn sgil diffyg stoc cerbydau
disel ac mae hyn yn cyfyngu ar eu gallu i ddarparu gwasanaethau ychwanegol. Yn wyneb y galw cynyddol am deithio
ar y rheilffyrdd a chyda’r angen am fwy o wasanaethau yng ngogledd Cymru, ni ddylai’r stoc cerbydau fod yn ffactor

sy’n cyfyngu. Tudalen y pecyn 38



O ran y stoc cerbydau, mae gan ogledd Cymru ddyhead i ddatblygu’r traffig twristiaeth sy’n cyrraedd ar y rheilffyrdd
ac fe ddylid creu manyldeb ar gyfer stoc cerbydau sy’n cynnig Wi-Fi, cyfleusterau da ar gyfer teithio pellteroedd maith
(toiledau ac arlwyo) a digon o le ar gyfer bagiau. Yn ogystal, bydd hyn yn bodloni anghenion prifysgolion y rhanbarth
(Bangor a Glyndwr), sy’n bryderus am ansawdd gwael y gwasanaethau rheilffordd ar gyfer y rhanbarth sy’'n effeithio
ar ba mor gystadleuol ydyn nhw wrth geisio denu myfyrwyr a staff academaidd. Ar ben hyn, mae cael stoc cerbydau o
ansawdd da yn hanfodol er mwyn gwneud argraff dda ar bobl fusnes sy’n ystyried buddsoddi yng ngogledd Cymru.

Felly, rhaid i gomisiynydd y fasnachfraint rheilffordd nesaf, sef Llywodraeth Cymru yn 6l pob tebyg (dan ddél
ddatganoli nad ydyw’n gyhoeddus hyd yma), gael strategaeth i ymestyn a gwella ansawdd y stoc cerbydau sydd i'w
ddefnyddio yn y rhanbarth.

Trydaneiddio

Mae’n hanfodol trydaneiddio’r llwybrau o Crewe a Warrington i Gaergybi, os am gyflawni gwasanaethau cyflymach ac
amlach ar hyd PLGC. Cafodd y buddion o weithredu trenau wedi’u trydaneiddio eu crynhoi gan y Gweinidog
Trafnidiaeth: ‘electric trains can help cut greenhouse gas emissions, offer a better passenger experience and are
cheaper to purchase, operate and maintain than their diesel equivalents’.

Mewn cyd-destun economaidd, dyma’r buddion a fyddai’n dod yn sgil trydaneiddio PLGC:

Bydd trydaneiddio llwybr Crewe/Warrington — Caergybi yn cyfrannu’n gryf at yr economi rhanbarthol ac at yr
economi cenedlaethol drwy ychwanegu o leiaf £400m mewn buddion trafnidiaeth a buddion economaidd ehangach®.
Mae cael gwasanaethau cyflymach sy’n arwain at siwrneiau byrrach yn agor cyfleoedd cyflogaeth yn Swydd Gaer,
Glannau Mersi a gogledd-orllewin Lloegr. Yna, bydd gan gyflogwyr bwl ehangach o weithwyr i recriwtio ohono.

Mae siwrneiau teithio cyflymach yn dda i fusnes: mae cwtogi’r pellter rhwng y cwsmer a’r cyflenwr, yn cynyddu
graddfa’r gweithgarwch masnachol ac yn denu mwy o gwmniau i'r ardal. Mae’r tybiaethau cynllunio trafnidiaeth ar
gyfer Pwerdy’r Gogledd wedi’u seilio ar gwtogi amseroedd siwrneiau rhwng Lerpwl — Manceinion — Leeds — Sheffield
— Newcastle. Mae dwy o’r dinasoedd hynny, Lerpwl a Manceinion, yn effeithio ar economi Gogledd Cymru ac mae’n
hanfodol bod cysylltedd rheilffordd cyflym ac effeithiol rhwng y tri, ac nid dim ond rhwng y ddwy ddinas.

Er nad yw’r achos busnes dros drydaneiddio Crewe/Warrington — Caergybi yn gryf o ran meini prawf arferol yr Adran
Drafnidiaeth, y gred gyfredol yw bod angen rhoi mwy o bwyslais ar y buddion economaidd a ddaw yn sgil buddsoddi
mewn trydaneiddio; barn sydd wedi’i chefnogi gan Andrew Jones AS fel Cadeirydd Tasglu Trydaneiddio Gogledd
Lloegr. Mae gwaith pellach ar y gweill gan y Bwrdd a Llywodraeth Cymru fydd yn adeiladu ar yr achos busnes ac yn ei
gryfhau.

Dylid ystyried trydaneiddio yn fwy strategol: efallai nad oes gan un llwybr achos busnes cryf ond dylid rhoi sylw i
ystyriaethau eraill. Er enghraifft, sut y byddai PLGC wedi’i thrydaneiddio yn integreiddio a llwybrau eraill sydd wedi’u
trydaneiddio mewn mannau eraill a pha fuddion cydredol fyddai’'n dod yn ei sgil, e.e. effeithiolrwydd adeiladu, neu’r
defnydd a wneir o’r stoc cerbydau ac ati. Ni all ardal gogledd Cymru fforddio cael ei gadael ar 61 mewn byd disel
mewn rhwydwaith sy’n gynyddol gael ei drydaneiddio. Felly, mae gogledd Cymru angen i Lywodraeth Cymru gwffio
ar gyfer trydaneiddio gogledd Cymru fel bod hyn yn cael ei gynnwys fel un o’r cynlluniau yn yr HLOS ar gyfer CP6.

! Economic Growth and Social Value Benefit potential from Modernisation of Rail Services in North Wales Phase 2 Report
Medi 2014

Tudalen y pecyn 39



2. | ba raddau y mae blaenoriaethau Llywodraeth Cymru o ran seilwaith rheilffyrdd, gan gynnwys y blaenoriaethau
a nodwyd yn y Cynllun Cyllid Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol, ac adroddiad y Tasglu Gweinidogol ar Drafnidiaeth yng
Ngogledd Cymru, yn diwallu anghenion Cymru

Mae’r Bwrdd yn cytuno bod y flaenoriaeth yn y ddwy ddogfen yn cyfrannu at fodloni anghenion Cymru. Fodd bynnag,
byddai’r Bwrdd wedi croesawu cynnwys ailddyblu Rossett — Wrexham yn y CTC yn yr un modd ag y cyfeirir yn benodol
at ailddyblu rhan arall o’r lein dan R15, tudalen 24. Mae ailddyblu’r rhan hon hefyd yn cysylltu a R16 gwella
amseroedd teithio Gogledd — De Cymru a bydd o bwys cynyddol i Wrecsam drwy gynyddu capasiti’r rheilffordd tua’r
gogledd i Gaer, Lerpwl| drwy Halton Curve a gweddill gogledd-orllewin Lloegr.

Yn ogystal, mae’r Bwrdd yn croesawu’r ystyriaeth a roddir i leiniau rheilffordd newydd dan R18 yn y CTC a byddai’n
gofyn am ymgysylltiad actif & Llywodraeth Cymru o ran y broses o gynnig cynlluniau posib.

Mae’r Bwrdd yn dymuno gweld yr un pwysigrwydd a blaenoriaeth yn cael ei rhoi i drydaneiddio PLGC a’r hyn a roddir
i gynlluniau trydaneiddio yn ne Cymru. Dylid cael cydbwysedd rhwng y buddsoddiad a wneir yn y rheilffyrdd yng
ngogledd Cymru a de Cymru, ac yn y ddau ranbarth y cysylltedd Dwyrain — Gorllewin i ac o ranbarthau trawsffiniol
cyferbyn sydd o bwys hanfodol. Bydd y Bwrdd yn cefnogi Llywodraeth Cymru i weithio tuag at yr amcan hwn ond
bydd arno angen adnodd a chapasiti i wneud hynny.

3. Sut mae datblygiad seilwaith rheilffyrdd Lloegr, a'r modd y defnyddir y seilwaith hwnnw, yn effeithio ar Gymru,
ac i'r gwrthwyneb;

Ac eithrio ailddyblu Rossett i Saltney Junction, mae buddsoddiad diweddar a buddsoddiadau sydd wedi’u cynllunio yn
y gogledd wedi bod, ac am fod, ar ochr Lloegr i’r ffin ac felly’r her i Lywodraeth Cymru yw darganfod sut i elwa o hyn.
Rydym yn bryderus bod posibilrwydd i rai buddsoddiadau yn y seilwaith dynnu buddion i ffwrdd o ogledd Cymru: nid
yw cynlluniau Hwb y Gogledd yn ystyried bod gwasanaethau gogledd Cymru yn rhedeg i Fanceinion er bod hwn yn
brif lwybr o bwys; ac ni fydd unrhyw waith o drydaneiddio’r llwybr yn y gogledd-orllewin rhwng Manceinion a Leeds
yn y dyfodol yn cael unrhyw effaith ar ogledd Cymru heb i’r rhanbarth hwn gael ei drydaneiddio hefyd.

Eithriad i hyn yw Halton Curve, fydd yn gadael i wasanaethau redeg o ganol Lerpwl i ogledd Cymru drwy Runcorn gan
agor cyfleoedd cyflogaeth yn ardal de Lerpwl. Mae hon yn enghraifft dda o ddatblygiad seilwaith yn Lloegr yn cael
gwir fudd yng Nghymru cyhyd ag y bo gwasanaethau trwodd i ogledd Cymru’n cael eu darparu.

Bydd HS2 yn ddatblygiad seilwaith arall yn Lloegr fydd yn cael effaith ddofn ar ogledd Cymru. Fodd bynnag, ni ellir
cyflawni buddion llawn HS2 os na chaiff y llwybr o Crewe i Gaergybi ei drydaneiddio hefyd. Dyma gyfle i Lywodraeth
Cymru ymgysylltu & HS2 Limited i edrych ar y gwaith o gynllunio hwb Crewe, fel y gellir rhedeg trenau Classic
Compatible HS2 drwodd i Gaergybi. Gallai rhedeg trenau HS2 drwodd i Gaergybi arwain at y budd ychwanegol o
ddenu teithwyr awyren Gwyddelig yn 6l at y rheilffyrdd, ac yn ei dro bydd hyn yn cryfhau’r achos busnes dros
drydaneiddio Crewe — Caergybi a HS2.

Heb fuddsoddi mewn gwelliannau i seilwaith rheilffyrdd gogledd Cymru ni ellir cyflawni’r buddiannau a ddaw yn sgil
buddsoddi yng ngogledd-orllewin Lloegr yn y rhanbarth hwn. Felly, mae rheswm amlwg pam y dylai Llywodraeth
Cymru chwarae rhan actif yn nhrafodaethau buddsoddiadau rheilffordd Northern Rail sy’'n effeithio ar ogledd Cymru,
ac i'r gwrthwyneb, fel nad yw’r penderfyniadau a wneir yn diystyru ystyriaethau trawsffiniol. Fel ag y mae, mae’r
seilwaith yn cael ei ddatblygu ar gyflymder gwahanol ar y naill ochr i’r ffin ac os bydd hyn yn parhau, gallai arwain at
economi ddwy haen sy’n cael ei gwahanu gan y ffin.

Tudalen y pecyn 40




4. Effaith datblygiadau allweddol arfaethedig yn Lloegr ar Gymru, gan gynnwys rheilffyrdd cyflym, trydaneiddio,
Pwerdy'r Gogledd/Trafnidiaeth ar gyfer y Gogledd a datganoli cyfrifoldeb dros y rheilffyrdd yn ehangach o fewn
Lloegr

Bydd y datblygiadau a nodir yn y cwestiwn uchod yn cael mwy o effaith bosib ar ogledd Cymru nac ar rannau eraill o
Gymru. Fodd bynnag, mae risg na fydd y buddion posib hyn yn cael eu cyflawni’n llawn os na fydd y datblygiadau hyn
yn cynnwys cyfranogiad a chynllunio cywir.

Mae HS2 yn enghraifft dda o hyn. Crewe yw'r lleoliad a ffafrir ar gyfer hwb HS2 gan ei fod yn ganolog mewn nifer o
Iwybrau, yn cynnwys llwybrau i ogledd Cymru. Ond, ar hyn o bryd, y cynllun yw y bydd yn rhaid i deithwyr o ogledd
Cymru newid trenau yn hwb Crewe i ymuno a’r gwasanaeth cyflymder uchel i Lundain. Mae’r angen i newid trenau a’r
oedi posib yn sgil ailinio’r amserlenni yn rhesymau pam allai effaith HS2 ar ogledd Cymru fod yn negyddol. Er mwyn i
ogledd Cymru deimlo budd llawn HS2, dylai trenau Classic Compatible redeg rhwng Llundain a Chaergybi fel y gellir
teithio’n ddi-dor. Mae trydaneiddio’r llwybr rhwng Crewe a Chaergybi yn hanfodol er mwyn i hyn ddigwydd.

Mae deilliant Adroddiad Hendy wedi gostwng sgbp cynlluniau trydaneiddio yn CP5, sy’n golygu bod rhai cynlluniau
ymrwymedig megis trydaneiddio’r Trans Pennine, Midland Mainline a Abertawe — Caerdydd bellach yn cael eu
cyflwyno yn CP6 rhwng 2019 a 2024. Yn anochel felly bydd hynny’n rhoi pwysau ar allu Network Rail i gyflwyno
cynlluniau trydaneiddio posib eraill yn ystod y cyfnod hwnnw gan olygu y gallai trydaneiddio PLGC gael ei oedi tan
gyfnod rheoli diweddarach. Byddai hynny’n oedi’r buddion economaidd a ddaw yn sgil trydaneiddio hyd y dyfodol
pell. Felly, byddai’r Bwrdd yn croesawu cefnogaeth Llywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod trydaneiddio PLGC hefyd yn cael
ei gynnwys yn CP6. Mae hyn yn bwysig o ystyried bod angen i ogledd Cymru fod yn barod ar gyfer HS2 (h.y. wedi’i
drydaneiddio) erbyn i HS2 gyrraedd Crewe erbyn 2027 yn unol &’r cynlluniau.

Un pryder sylweddol yw mai dim ond llwybrau Acton Grange (Warrington) — Caer a Crewe — Chester sy’n cael eu
trydaneiddio. Casglodd Tasglu Trydaneiddio Gogledd Lloegr bod y llwybr cyntaf uchod yn llwybr Haen 1 ac yna, mewn
gweithred ar wahan, dosbarthodd y Network Rail Utilisation Strategy — Refresh 2014 yr ail lwybr uchod fel llwybr
Haen 1. Pe byddai gwasanaethau trydan yn gorffen yng Nghaer, byddai’n rhaid i deithwyr i ac o ogledd Cymru newid
trenau. Byddai gorfodi teithwyr i newid trenau yng Nghaer yn cael effaith negyddol ddifrifol ar economi Cymru a
Lloegr. Casglodd Greengauge 21 (ymgynghorwyr), yn y senario hon, y byddai bron i £600mn o fuddion trafnidiaeth a
£476mn o fuddion cydgrynhoad B2B yn cael eu colli (gan ddefnyddio prisiau 2010 i gyfrifo hynny)’. Byddai gorffen y
gwaith trydaneiddio yng Nghaer yn ei gwneud yn anoddach i sefydlu achos busnes hyfyw ar gyfer y rhan Caer —
Caergybi yn ddiweddarach. Felly, mae’n hanfodol bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i gefnogi trydaneiddio yng
ngogledd Cymru fel rhan o un cynllun cyffredinol o Crewe/Warrington — Caergybi.

Mae cysyniad Pwerdy’r Gogledd yn cynyddu twf economaidd drwy gwtogi ar yr amseroedd teithio rhwng pum prif
ddinas yng ngogledd Lloegr: Lerpwl — Manceinion — Leeds — Sheffield — Newcastle upon Tyne. Fodd bynnag, mae
gogledd Cymru yn rhan annatod o sector gogledd-orllewin y Pwerdy o ran cynllunio trafnidiaeth. Mae economi
ffyniannus yn bodoli rhwng gogledd Cymru a Swydd Gaer, Glannau Mersi a Greater Manchester. Mae’r mewnlifiad
mwyaf o weithwyr i mewn i ardal Cheshire Warrington LEP yn dod o Sir y Fflint®> ac mae hynny’n ffurfio rhan o dros
1mn o symudiadau traws ffiniol bob mis®. Mae’r ffin hon yn anweladwy o safbwynt busnes felly mae’n hanfodol cael
gwell cysylltiadau rheilffordd o ogledd Cymru i ardal Pwerdy’r Gogledd os yw’r ddwy ardal am wireddu eu potensial i'r
eithaf.

2 Economic Growth and Social Value Benefit potential from Modernisation of Rail Services in North Wales Phase 2 Report
Medi 2014.
* Cheshire Warrington LEP Draft European Structural and Investment Funds Strategy 2014 - 2020

* Adroddiad Mickledore 2013
Tudalen y pecyn 41




Mae Trafnidiaeth ar gyfer y Gogledd (TfN) a Rail North (RN) wedi’u creu yn briodol ac yn weithredol, er mai dyddiau
cynnar yw hi. Dros y ddwy flynedd nesaf, bydd Rail North yn dod yn gorff Rheoli Masnachfraint Rheilffordd ar gyfer
Trafnidiaeth ar gyfer y Gogledd. Heb gael perthynas weithio rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a’r cyrff hyn, mae risgiau posib
i ogledd Cymru: un enghraifft yw’r prif ffocws sydd gan TfN a RN ar reoli a chryfhau cysylltiadau trafnidiaeth o fewn
ardal ddaearyddol TfN, ac felly mae’n bosib na fyddant yn ystyried cysylltiadau trawsffiniol i mewn i ogledd Cymru.
Risg arall yw’r flaenoriaeth a roddir i wasanaethau Northern a TPE i Faes Awyr Manceinion yn hytrach na Threnau
Arriva Cymru. Y dystiolaeth sy’n cefnogi’'r farn hon yw’r posibilrwydd y gallai gwasanaethau gogledd Cymru gael eu
hadleoli o Manchester Piccadilly i Manchester Victoria yn y dyfodol, a’r ffaith bod Northern wedi gwrthwynebu cais
Trenau Arriva Cymru i ymestyn gwasanaethau i Faes Awyr Manceinion. Gan bod economi gogledd Cymru yn
rhyngddibynnol ar ogledd-orllewin Lloegr a Phwerdy’r Gogledd, byddai ymgysylitiad rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a TfN
a RN yn cryfhau'r berthynas economaidd ac yn hanfodol, yn rhoi mewnbwn i'r penderfyniadau a wneir ar
drafnidiaeth.

Mae’r paragraff blaenorol yn nodi sut allai datganoli i ranbarth yng ngogledd-orllewin Lloegr gael effaith andwyol ar
(ran o) Gymru. Ni ddylid diystyru’r ffaith y gallai rheilffyrdd gael eu datganoli yn y West Midlands hefyd, ac mae i hyn
oblygiadau i ganolbarth Cymru. | liniaru’r effeithiau andwyol posib yn sgil datganoli rheilffyrdd ar ochr Lloegr i'r ffin,
dylai LlywodraethCymru ystyried cael perthynas fwy ffurfiol rhwng y rhanbarthau o Gymru sydd ar y ffin a
rhanbarthau o Loegr. Heb hynny, mae risg y bydd y feddylfryd o ymraniad ffiniol yn cryfhau.

Fel y dywedodd yr Adran Drafnidiaeth ei hun, “good transport connectivity is essential for cities and regions to build
and maintain their economic competitiveness, and regions served by rapid rail services prosper at the expense of those
with inferior connections”

5. Beth yw'r ffordd orau i Lywodraeth Cymru ymgysylltu a datblygiadau seilwaith yn Lloegr, yn ogystal a
datblygiadau ym maes gwasanaethau teithwyr a chludo nwyddau sy'n defnyddio'r rhwydwaith, a dylanwadu ar
y datblygiadau hyn.

Bydd y gyfradd y mae strwythurau llywodraethu yn Lloegr yn newid a’r amrediad eang o drefniadau datganoli sy’n
cael eu trafod yn cael effaith ddofn ar benderfyniadau trawsffiniol a wneir ar drafnidiaeth. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru
fynd ati’'n egniol i ehangu ei ymgysylltiad ag amrediad ehangach o gyrff a sefydliadau sy’n gyfrifol am ddatblygu
seilwaith rheilffyrdd, pan fo posibilrwydd y gallai’r gwaith effeithio ar Gymru. Dyma rai awgrymiadau:

DfT, National Infrastructure Commission, Rail North, Trafnidiaeth ar gyfer y Gogledd, Network Rail London North
West, Freight Transport Group, y tri ROSCO: Angel, Eversholt, a Porterbrook.

Yr amcan fyddai datblygu gweithio, meddwl a chynllunio trawsffiniol mwy cynhyrchiol. Mae angen hyn yn enwedig o
ran materion rhwng gogledd Cymru a gogledd-orllewin Lloegr, pan fo’r ffin yn cael ei hystyried yn rhwystr rhwng dwy
weinyddiaeth ar wahan ond ble mae’r ffin, o ddydd i ddydd, yn anweladwy. Enghraifft dda o hyn oedd sgop Tasglu
Trydaneiddio Gogledd Lloegr y llynedd a fu’'n ystyried y rhannau Warrington — Caer a Crewe — Caer o'r llwybr i
Gaergybi yn unig; felly o ganlyniad, ni fesurwyd y buddion sy’n dod o’r llwybr cyfan.

Dylid annog y diwydiant rheilffyrdd, yn enwedig rhannau Network Rail a Chomisiynwyr gwasanaethau rheilffordd
(Llywodraeth Cymru a Thrafnidiaeth ar gyfer y Gogledd/Rail North), i weithio ar draws ffiniau yn ardaloedd y gororau i
sicrhau y cynllunnir ar gyfer cael rhwydwaith holistaidd sy’n bodloni anghenion yr economi real, yn hytrach na ffiniau
gwleidyddol a gweinyddol artiffisial.

Tudalen y pecyn 42




6. A yw'r broses adolygu gyfnodol yn diwallu anghenion Cymru ac yn ystyried anghenion teithwyr a defnyddwyr
sy'n cludo nwyddau yng Nghymru, a sut y dylid datblygu hyn.

Byddai’r Bwrdd yn tynnu i sylw Llywodraeth Cymru bod y Draft Wales Route Study for Consultation 2015 Network Rail
wedi seilio eu rhagolygon teithwyr ar gyfer Gogledd Cymru ar y Farchnad Pellter Hir. Er bod teithio o Lundain i ogledd
Cymru yn ffactor bwysig, byddai wedi bod yn fwy perthnasol defnyddio’r Farchnad Rhyng-drefol ar gyfer y rhagolygon
er mwyn cynnwys teithio busnes a hamdden sylweddol rhwng gogledd Cymru a Chaer, gogledd Cymru a Manceinion,
Wrecsam a Chaer a Wrecsam a’r Amwythig, er enghraifft.

O ran datblygiad yn y dyfodol, mae angen i'r broses gwerthuso buddsoddiad fod yn llai cymhleth, dylid ei chwblhau
dros gyfnod byrrach o amser a dylai fod yn llai costus. Mae mynd a chynllun o’r cysyniad i achos busnes terfynol yn
broses hirfaith a drud. (Mae Halton Curve wedi cymryd deng mlynedd i gyrraedd achos busnes terfynol ac mae
hwnnw yn ymdrin ag ailagor 3km o lein rheilffordd sy’n bodoli'n barod). Mae proses gwneud penderfyniadau hirfaith
yn golygu ei bod yn anodd i’r diwydiant rheilffordd addasu i batrymau galw sy’n newid. Mae gan rai Awdurdodau yn
Lloegr, yn enwedig PTE, adrannau trafnidiaeth mawr a chyllidebau mwy sy’n ei gwneud yn haws i reoli’r broses hon ac
o ganlyniad, mae ganddynt well siawns o ennill buddsoddiad. Mewn sefylifa o’r fath, bydd yr adolygiad cyfnodol, wrth
ddilyn y broses gyfredol, yn gweithio yn erbyn sawl Awdurdod llai megis y rhai sydd yng Nghymru.

7. Effeithiolrwydd Liwybr Network Rail yng Nghymru ac a yw'r dull o reoli, cynnal a chadw, adnewyddu a gwella'r
rhwydwaith yn effeithiol wrth sicrhau gwerth am arian, capasiti a chyflymder y gwasanaeth, sicrhau ei fod yn
ddibynadwy ac yn rhedeg yn ddigon aml, a sicrhau y gellir mynd i'r afael & phroblemau teithio i deithwyr a
defnyddwyr sy'n cludo nwyddau yng Nghymru

Er mwyn ymateb yn llawn i bob pwynt yn y cwestiwn uchod byddai angen dadansoddi’r data perthnasol ac nid yw ar
gael yn rhwydd.

Gwnaed y pwynt hwn yn gynharach yn yr ymateb hwn pan nodwyd nad yw trenau’n teithio’n ddigon cyflym yng
ngogledd Cymru. Mae rhannau o lein yr arfordir wedi’u cyfyngu i 75mya, a’r cyflymder uchaf ar lein y Gororau yw
50mya. Nid yw hyn yn ddigon cyflym ar gyfer rhwydwaith fodern a ddylai fod yn cyflwyno amseroedd teithio
cyflymach yng ngogledd Cymru. Mewn perthynas a hyn, nid yw Network Rail wedi cyflwyno unrhyw welliannau i
gyflymder y lein ac mae’n siom enbyd bod unrhyw welliannau o’r fath yn amodol ar iddynt gael eu cynnwys yn yr
HLOS nesaf ac hyd yn oed wedyn, mae hyn o leiaf bedair blynedd i ffwrdd.

Mae signalau yn ffactor bwysig hefyd wrth alluogi cyflymder uwch a mwy o drenau i redeg ar ran benodol o’r lein. Yn
wreiddiol, roedd Cam 1 PLGC i fod i'w gwblhau yn ystod yr haf 2015. Erbyn hyn, mae’r Cam hwnnw wedi’i oedi hyd
nes yn ddiweddarach yn CP5 gan olygu bod unrhyw fuddion o ran cyflymder a chapasiti hefyd yn cael eu hoedi.

Mae cael gwasanaethau i Faes Awyr Manceinion wedi bod yn amcan i ogledd Cymru ers amser maith. Er bod achos
busnes cryf ar gyfer ymestyn Gwasanaethau Gogledd Cymru i’r maes awyr, nid yw Network Rail Wales wedi cefnogi
hyn. Mae’r Bwrdd yn cydnabod bod gormod o alw am lwybrau i’'r maes awyr ond mae cyfyngu gogledd Cymru i un
gwasanaeth i bob cyfeiriad bob dydd yn golygu nad oes gan un o ddalgylchoedd mawr y maes awyr fynediad ato ar y
rheilffyrdd. Mae hyn yn andwyol i ogledd Cymru.

Wrth ystyried hyn gyda’i gilydd, cesglir nad yw’r diwydiant rheilffyrdd wedi buddsoddi digon yng ngogledd Cymru i
fedru cynnig opsiwn cludiant sy’n ddigon cystadleuol. Mae’n rhaid gweld newid mawr yn y cynnig rheilffordd er mwyn
annog pobl i deithio ar y rheilffordd yn hytrach nac ar y ffordd. Fel ag y mae hi, mae teithio o’r dwyrain i’r gorllewin yn
gyflymach ac yn rhatach ar y ffordd.

Tudalen y pecyn 43




Mae’n rhaid i Network Rail Wales wasanaethu ardal ddaearyddol fawr nad ydyw wedi’i chysylltu’n naturiol. Mae’r Ilif
teithwyr yn ne Cymru yn canolbwyntio’n bennaf ar Gaerdydd, ond yng ngogledd Cymru maent yn drawsffiniol ac yn
bennaf yn llifo i ogledd-orllewin Lloegr. Nid yw hyn yn ffit naturiol i Network Rail Wales nac i'r llwybrau y mae’n eu
gwasanaethu.

O ganlyniad, mae’n rhaid i gangen Cymru o Network Rail ddatblygu cysylltiadau trawsffiniol a threfniadau cydlynu
sy’n golygu y gellir cynllunio rhwydwaith Gogledd Cymru yn holistaidd ac osgoi rhwydwaith darniog a thanfuddsoddi
sy’n cael ei achosi drwy gynnal gwerthusiadau sy’n dod i stop ar y ffin.

8. Y ffaith nad yw cyllid ar gyfer seilwaith rheilffyrdd Cymru wedi'i ddatganoli. Y manteision, anfanteision,
cyfleoedd a risgiau a allai fod yn gysylitiedig a datganoli

Mae’n anodd ymateb i'r pwnc hwn heb wybod union fanylion y cynigion datganoli seilwaith i Gymru. Bydd deilliant
Adroddiad Shaw yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriad yn cael dylanwad ar y cyllid fydd ar gael i’'r seilwaith rheilffyrdd yn y
dyfodol a dylai Llywodraeth Cymru roi sylw i hyn wrth iddo ystyried datganoli’r seilwaith. Mae sylwadau’r Bwrdd yn
ymwneud a’r egwyddor gyffredinol o ddatganoli’r seilwaith rheilffyrdd.

Yn syml, y brif fantais o ddatganoli’r seilwaith rheilffyrdd yw mai Llywodraeth Cymru fyddai'r prif wneuthurwr
penderfyniadau ar fuddsoddiadau rheilffordd yng Nghymru. Ar hyn o bryd, yr Adran Drafnidiaeth sy’n gwerthuso’r
holl gynlluniau buddsoddi rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru a Lloegr yn erbyn ei feini prawf ei hun. Gan ei bod yn broses
gystadleuol am gyllid prin, gall y penderfyniad gael ei ddylanwadu gan ystyriaethau gwleidyddol sydd wedi’'u
dylanwadu, ar draul yr achos busnes, a gall hyn weithio yn erbyn Cymru. Gyda datganoli hefyd byddai gan Lywodraeth
Cymru'r disgresiwn i werthuso opsiynau buddsoddi yn erbyn cyfres o feini prawf gwahanol, ynghyd a lliflinio’r broses
gwneud penderfyniadau gan arbed amser ac arian. Gallai hynny arwain at gyfle i ymdrin a8 buddsoddiadau rheilffyrdd
yng Nghymru mewn ffordd mwy deinamig, yn yr un modd ac sydd wedi digwydd yn Yr Alban.

Fodd bynnag, mae’r rhwydwaith rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru yn un rhan o rwydwaith cenedlaethol ac mae angen i bob
rhan integreiddio a gweithredu’n ddi-dor. Os bydd y seilwaith rheilffyrdd yn cael ei ddatganoli i Lywodraeth Cymru,
bydd yn anoddach cyflawni hyn gan y gallai buddsoddiad yng Nghymru gael effaith ar y rhwydwaith yn Lloegr ac i'r
gwrthwyneb. Mewn senario yn dilyn datganoli, pe byddai Llywodraeth Cymru’n penderfynu trydaneiddio PLGC, ni
fyddai’n ddichonadwy oni bai bod yr Adran Drafnidiaeth yn cytuno i drydaneiddio cysylltiadau ar ochr Lloegr i’r ffin, ac
nid oes sicrwydd y byddai hynny’n digwydd. Enghraifft arall yw p’un a fyddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn dymuno rhan-
gyllido Halton Curve, sydd wedi’i leoli’'n gyfan gwbl yn Lloegr ond sy’n cyflwyno mantais o ran mynediad llwybr Cymru
i Lerpwl? Nid yw’r enghreifftiau hyn yn broblem tra saif y penderfyniad a’r Adran Drafnidiaeth, ond byddai'n llawer
mwy cymhleth pe byddai dwy ffrwd wahanol yn gwneud y penderfyniadau.

Ystyriaeth allweddol arall yw lefel y gyllideb a fyddai’n cael ei dyrannu i Lywodraeth Cymru am dderbyn y cyfrifoldeb
am y seilwaith rheilffyrdd. Unwaith y byddai cytundeb wedi’i lunio, byddai Llywodraeth Cymru yn gyfrifol am gynnal a
chadw a gwneud gwaith i ddatblygu’r rhwydwaith. Mae’r risgiau wedi'u lledaenu tra bo rhwydwaith Cymru’n
parhau’n rhan o rwydwaith llawer mwy. Pe byddai datganoli’n digwydd, byddai’'n rhaid rheoli risgiau megis gorlifo ar
lein Dyffryn Conwy neu ddifrod storm i lein y Cambrian o gyllideb llawer llai.

Fodd bynnag, rydym yn grediniol y dylid cyfeirio at allu Liywodraeth Cymru i ychwanegu at arian buddsoddi er mwyn
diogelu buddsoddiadau sy’n fasnachol dderbyniol dros gyfnod byrrach a mwy sefydlog o amser, gan nad yw hyn yn
bosib drwy’r Adran Drafnidiaeth.

Mae’r ddadl ynghylch datganoli’r seilwaith yn un a benderfynir gan lywodraethau cenedlaethol. Mae’r ddadl dros
ddatganoli yn fwy cytbwys yng Nghymru nac yn yr Alban yn sgil natur y gwasanaethau trawsffiniol, yn enwedig yng

ngogledd Cymru. Yr hyn sydd yn hanfodolmuawme‘yﬁag;hau ynghylch datganoli yw bod cytundeb clir ar




welliannau a datblygiadau i’'r rhwydwaith ar lwybrau trawsffiniol sy’n sicrhau bod siwrneiau yn ddi-dor ac nad oes
problemau sylweddol yn codi yn sgil datganoli. Mae’r senario yng ngogledd Cymru yn llawer mwy cymhleth yn sgil
rhyngweithiad yr economi trawsffiniol. Mae’r Bwrdd yn bryderus y gallai hyn fynd yn angof yn sgil diffyg gwybodaeth
ynghylch yr amgylchiadau penodol hyn yn Llundain ac yng Nghaerdydd.

Gall y Bwrdd gefnogi datganoli buddsoddiadau yn y seilwaith i Gymru ar yr amod, o ran gogledd Cymru, bod unrhyw

becyn datganoli yn ymdrin yn benodol a’r mater o gynllunio trawsffiniol i sicrhau y gwireddir gwerthusiad buddsoddi
holistaidd a phrosesau cynllunio ar y cyd.

Tudalen y pecyn 45



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee

Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future

dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 23 WRI 23

Cynghrair Mersi a’r Ddyfrdwy Mersey Dee Alliance

~_ Mersey Dee Alliance
A c/o Cheshire West and Chester Council
Nicholas Street
MERSEY DEE Chester
MERSI A'R DDYFRDWY CH12\P

Email:

emma.wynne@cheshirewestandchester.gov.uk

Wednesday 13" January 2016

RE: Priorities for the Future of Welsh Rail Infrastructure Inquiry

Dear Ms de Gama Howells,

On behalf of the Mersey Dee Alliance , | would like to take this opportunity to confirm support from
the Alliance for the responses to the Priorities for the Future of Welsh Rail Infrastructure Inquiry
submitted by Merseytravel, on behalf of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority, the North
Wales Economic Ambition Board and Cheshire West and Chester Council.

The Mersey Dee Alliance (MDA) is a strategic economic partnership across Flintshire, Wrexham,
Cheshire West and Chester and Wirral. The MDA recognises the importance of cross border
collaboration to strengthen our combined economy across North Wales, Cheshire and Merseyside
and therefore supports the priorities for rail infrastructure investment outlined in the three responses
mentioned above.

It is important for the Inquiry to note that the economy of Mersey-Dee cross-border region generates
£17bn GVA per annum and has great growth potential. Locations such as Wirral Waters Enterprise
Zone, Deeside Enterprise Zone, Ellesmere Port Enterprise Zone, Wrexham Industrial Estate and
Technology Park, central Chester Business District and Thornton Science Park could deliver
40,000-50,000 new jobs over the next 15-20 years. Combined with Anglesey Enterprise Zone,
Snowdonia Enterprise Zone, the wider Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership

area and the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority it is clear that this combined economy is of
significant importance to the UK.

The private sector will be the principal driver of this growth and both UK and Welsh Governments,
and their delivery agents, have a critical role to play in creating the conditions that will facilitate
indigenous growth and attract new investment. In particular, an efficient, integrated transport
infrastructure that provides businesses with fast access to national and international markets and
enables people to access employment opportunities is essential if the region is to achieve its full
growth potential.

I look forward to the Business and Enterprise Committee meeting for this Inquiry on 28th January
where we can further raise these important issues.

Tudalen y pecyn 45


mailto:emma.wynne@cheshirewestandchester.gov.uk

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes

Enterprise and Business Committee

Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng
Nghymru

Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

WRI 23

WRI 23

Cynghrair Mersi a’r Ddyfrdwy

Mersey Dee Alliance

Yours sincerely,

Yours sincerely
J— v
— kM=
| — -~

Clir Pat Hackett
Chair
Mersey Dee Alliance

Tudalen y pecyn 46




Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee
Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 14 WRI 14

Cyngor Gorllewin Sir Gaer a Chaer Cheshire West and Chester Council

1.0 Background and purpose of this document

1.1 The Enterprise and Business Committee of the National Assembly for Wales
is holding an inquiry in to the future priorities for Welsh rail infrastructure. The
committee has invited comments on issues relevant to the rail infrastructure in
Wales, to inform decisions on Welsh rail infrastructure in and beyond) the Network
Rail (NR) Control Period 6 (CP6), which is the period 2019 — 24. Details are
available within the following link:

http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?ID=207

1.2 The Welsh Government (WG) has powers to fund rail infrastructure
investment, although primary funding for NR comes from the United Kingdom
Government. The scope of this inquiry includes the relationship and planning
between the Welsh and English rail networks how this can be further co-ordinated to
deliver two way cross border benefits.

1.3  Cheshire West and Chester Council welcome the opportunity to input to this
inquiry. This document provides comments on behalf of the Council, and is based
upon the specific topics mentioned within the consultation document in addition to
the role of cross border rail in terms of wider transport and connectivity priorities.

1.4  This response is submitted specifically in the context of the north Wales
(including links with the Marches and mid Wales) and cross border areas.

2.0 Priorities for rail infrastructure investment

2.1 Cheshire West and Chester Council (CWaCC) recognizes the full value of
efficient multi directional cross border connectivity with Wales as being essential for
prosperity of the region’s competitiveness, building sustainable local and regional
economic prosperity whilst generating employment opportunities. The Council places
high importance of collaboration with Welsh stakeholders including membership of
the Mersey Dee Alliance (Mersey-Dee cross-border region generating £17bn GVA
per annum), collaboration with the WG, NR and Merseytravel on the Halton Curve
scheme and work with the North Wales Economic Ambition Board. It is therefore
important that the scope of the Enterprise and Business Committee Inquiry is
broadened to include assessment of cross border investment priorities as well as
within Wales.

Tudalen y pecyn 47



http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?ID=207
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?ID=207

2.2  Strategic planning of rail infrastructure needs to form part of an integrated
multi modal approach, recognizing the importance of the north Wales cross border
corridors serving lIreland, north Wales, north west England and beyond, with the
existing enterprise and labour market of this shared economy providing significant
potential to help deliver the objectives of the Northern Powerhouse. The Leader of
CWaCC Councillor Samantha Dixon spoke at the North Wales Economic Ambition
Board Rail Summit held in November 2015, with a communique being issued on
behalf of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board, Mersey Dee Alliance and the
Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership offering a combined co-
ordinating group that will seek to work together with the UK Government and the WG
to commission research and studies that can: -

e Guide investment in the rail services and infrastructure serving the areas.

e Underpin the proposed growth plan for submission to the UK and Welsh
Governments and the submission to the Northern Powerhouse Minister

2.3 Business cases for rail infrastructure investment (Freight and passenger)
need to embrace the full cross border extent of immediate and ongoing
environmental, social, health and wider economic benefits of schemes and to link
those across schemes. Limiting evaluation purely to the route based transport
benefits will not be truly representative of the return of the investment. In a number of
cases, the geographical location of infrastructure investment requirement will have
implications across a number of other local transport authority areas and across the
Wales border. One example of this being the work of Merseytravel, WG and CWaCC
to reinstate regular passenger rail service using Halton Curve. Although investment
by the WG to fund doubling a section of track between Rossett and Chester to
reduce north / south Wales journey times is a significant commitment, if the section
of double track is extended beyond Rossett to Wrexham, this would also enable two
way improved links to Helsby / Frodsham, Runcorn and Liverpool South Parkway,
(For Liverpool John Lennon Airport) whilst reducing construction costs through
economies of scale.

24 A commitment is needed for electrification beyond Crewe and Warrington
through Chester to Holyhead (also Wrexham / Shrewsbury) to avoid isolating the
areas from an increasingly electrified rail network in England. This investment is an
essential element to maximise benefits of HS2 towards enabling classic compatible
services to / from the high speed network in addition to electric trains serving the
West Coast Main Line. — The latter enabling continuity of direct services to
intermediate stations to London such as Stafford and Milton Keynes. The business
case for electrification needs to fully embrace these wider network and socio
economic benefits as opposed to being restricted to a more limited route cost benefit
basis. The business case also needs to include the subsequent benefits that
electrification of this line will achieve in future control periods, such as enabling an
incremental approach to electrification of neighbouring lines.

Tudalen y pecyn 48



2.5 The Wrexham — Bidston Borderlands line (Serving Neston within Cheshire
West and Chester) is a further example of the importance of cross border scheme
appraisal. In collaboration with other partners (Including Merseytravel) CWaCC
funded a study demonstrating the growth potential that could be achieved through
infrastructure investment such as increasing service frequency, extension beyond
Bidston and ultimately electrification. Although a number of entities recognize the
potential overall achievable benefits from their individual perspective, an holistic
funding mechanism is needed that recognizes the overarching benefits and “places”
outcomes.

26 A WG Task Force was established in 2013 by the Minister for Economy,
Science and Transport consisting of a wide range of stakeholders which agreed a
series of objectives necessary to create a rail network fit for purpose. These include
improvements to local services; access to key markets; integrated services; and
international access. One example being the need for improved rail (and bus)
infrastructure access for employment opportunities at Deeside Industrial Park from
Hawarden Bridge and Shotton Stations, which are essential to unlock a vast labour
market including from Cheshire, Merseyside, Warrington north Wales and beyond,
acting as a catalyst for increasing inward investment.

2.7 Improving direct access by rail between Manchester and Liverpool John
Lennon airports, North Wales and Cheshire West needs to be addressed. The two
airports provide a comprehensive and complementary portfolio of flights, collectively
representing the major airports of choice from this region. Although Arriva Trains
Wales have submitted a track access application to extend north Wales coast
services to Manchester Airport from May 2016, even if this is granted, there are
capacity issues at Manchester that may jeopardise continuation of that link in favour
of services from elsewhere. Whilst CWaCC acknowledges that there is strong
demand for direct rail services for Manchester Airport from elsewhere, it is important
that this Inquiry (The Enterprise and Business Committee Welsh Rail Infrastructure)
provides fully inclusive supporting evidence and funding commitment for the direct
link with Cheshire West and north Wales. This similarly applies to providing
supporting evidence for welsh rail infrastructure investment that would enable a
direct rail link between the north Wales coast line, Wrexham, Chester, Helsby and
Frodsham and Liverpool South Parkway for Liverpool John Lennon Airport using
Halton Curve (Please also see paragraph 2.3).

2.8 An opportunity to significantly increase capacity for direct rail connectivity with
Manchester Airport from North Wales, Cheshire West, Chester and the Wirral would
be to develop the “Manchester Airport Western Link” This is a 3.5 mile new rail link
between the airport and the Mid Cheshire Line (Chester — Northwich — Manchester)
at Mobberley which would enable a major reduction of journey time (therefore
making employment opportunities at the airport more accessible) whilst not being
constrained by the limited availability of rail paths through Manchester. The
Manchester Airport draft sustainable development plan consultation during 2015
referred to reviewing whether to continue safeguarding this route through the airport

Tudalen y pecyn 49



site. Within its response to this consultation exercise, Cheshire West and Chester
Council opposed withdrawal of safeguarding this route in recognition of the
importance of this strategic transport investment to lead further growth of the cross
border region and the Northern Powerhouse proposition whilst maximising the
benefits of HS2.

2.9 Transport for the North (TfN) have commissioned a pan regional freight and
logistics strategy leading to a transport network that will enable the logistics sector to
drive growth and job creation across the north of England, supporting the vision of
the Northern Powerhouse. Through this work stream which is led by Merseytravel
(Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise Partnership representation is by Alan
Dickin, Warrington Borough Council), the Welsh Government is developing formal
arrangements for these benefits to be enhanced and extended to include north
Wales. The draft strategy will produced at the end of January 2016, with the final
strategy being presented to the Chancellor in spring 2016.

3.0 Relating Interdependencies

3.1 CWaCC is a member of Rail North Ltd (RNL), which will be jointly managing
the Northern and Trans Pennine Express (TPE) rail franchises with the Department
for Transport (DfT). Through effective collaboration and collation of robust evidence
bases, significant customer improvements will be delivered within these franchises to
be introduced in April 2016, reflecting prevailing growth patterns and unlocking the
potential for further patronage growth. This work forms one element of the wider
objectives of Transport of the North (TfN) to prioritise multi modal transport
infrastructure investment across the north of England to significantly improve the
economic competitiveness of the region, creating sustainable growth and
improvements to quality of life. The combined roles of RNL and TfN demonstrate a
need to ensure that a similar joined up approach to prioritising multi modal transport
infrastructure and rail franchise renewal is essential for Wales, whilst ensuring a
seamless approach across borders through engagement with RNL and TfN. It is by
focusing upon how the pooling of resources across organisations (such as NR, DfT
and WG) can best ensure that these and relating outcomes are timely achieved, that
should inform the governance arrangements and co ordination of investment, as
opposed to being derived from considering the issues / opportunities of devolvement
of Welsh rail infrastructure.

3.2 CWaCC continues to highlight the urgent need to take forward dialogue in
respect of informing renewal of the Wales and Borders franchise which is to be fully
devolved to the WG. This franchise will need to be growth orientated and at least
match the magnitude of improvements of the Northern and TPE franchises (This has
recently been discussed within a recent meeting of the Marches Strategic Rail Group
attended by Dorothy Higginson, Commercial Manager, Wales & Borders franchise
the from the DfT) to meet current and potential growth, recognizing the need for
shared commitment to investment within Wales and England based on the
passenger journey patterns. Relating this to the priorities for the future of welsh rail

Tudalen y pecyn 50



infrastructure, there is clearly a need for these to be aligned to the preparation of the
specification for renewal of franchises, particularly Wales and Borders, to enable
implementation of a significantly strengthened rail service within and beyond Wales.
This is equally important in respect of the West Coast Main Line franchise and HS2.
i.e. Whilst having a periodic review process has merit, this needs to have more
flexibility to improve alignment with franchise renewal processes to make sure that
infrastructure investment is matched by service delivery.

3.3  An important element of welsh rail infrastructure investment is to review the
capacity and configuration of Chester rail station to identify and implement any
infrastructure requirements needed to meet future growth projections. This is one
important example of the location of infrastructure outside Wales which has a
significant impact on delivery of (rail) transport services within Wales, demonstrating
the need for cross border commitment and collaboration.

3.4  The priorities of CWaCC for Welsh rail infrastructure are included within an
emerging Transport Strategy for the Cheshire and Warrington Local Enterprise
Partnership. This strategy prioritises the transport infrastructure investment schemes
that will have the greatest impact on job creation. In addition for schemes to show
their job creation impact once delivered, it is important that management of the
construction and supply chain processes are structured to maximise benefits for the
local labour markets, developing skills and supporting business development.
Opportunities need to include third sector as well as the commercial sector.

4.0 Conclusion

41 CWaCC greatly welcomes having an opportunity to comment on the priorities
for the future of welsh rail infrastructure through the consultation exercise of the
National Assembly for Wales Enterprise and Business Committee. The Council
wishes to proactively further develop existing two way collaboration with the National
Assembly and other agencies in Wales, reflecting the shared cross border economy
and the interdependencies of key decisions.

4.2  Welsh rail infrastructure investment needs to include improving the overall
passenger experience; providing safe and comfortable stations that meet or exceed
expectations; improving the quality of the journey; reducing travel times; improving
punctuality and reliability. Similarly, the investment also needs to facilitate increased
use of rail for freight transport, including “the last mile” terminal / siding facilities.

4.3 Although this consultation response contains comments on a number of
issues relating to welsh rail infrastructure priorities, CWaCC would greatly welcome
an opportunity to meet with the Enterprise and Business Committee, and provide any
relating additional supporting information that would help the committee.

Councillor Brian Clarke

Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Infrastructure, Cheshire West
and Chester Council

Tudalen y pecyn 51



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee
Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 05 WRI 05

Greengauge 21 Greengauge 21

1. Introduction

Greengauge 21 welcomes this opportunity to present a submission to the Enterprise and
Business Committee. Initially engaged by Taith, and subsequently by the North Wales
Economic Ambition Board, Greengauge 21 has been examining the wider social and
economic benefits of investment in rail in North Wales. Welsh Government and Network
Rail agreed at the outset that regional authorities were best places to carry out this work.

Greengauge 21 is a not-for-profit organisation, established in 2006 to research and develop
the concept of a high-speed rail network as a national economic priority. Greengauge 21
wants to see a fully integrated national high-speed rail network and the existing rail network
improved and extended to meet the strongly growing demand. We research and promote
the benefits of sustainable transport through a better rail network.

| have been engaged on studies of rail development in South, Mid and North Wales. | am a
Chartered Engineer, Director of the consultancy Steer Davies Gleave, past President of the
Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport, and was a member of the Executive of the
Strategic Rail Authority, responsible for strategic planning.

2. Recent Greengauge 21 work on wider benefits in North Wales

While the appraisals used by DfT, Network Rail and others provide benefit cost ratios for
investments, there is no standard method to examine wider social and economic benefits.
Work by Greengauge 21 in 2014 investigated the scale of Business-2-Business and labour
market benefits of a number of packages of electrification and/or service enhancements.
These benefits range from around £100m to £500m PV measured over a 60 year period and
are additive to conventionally measured benefits subject to minor technical caveats.

In Greengauge 21’s current work, we have made a comparison between the distribution of
conventional transport and economic benefits from rail investment and the distribution of
deprivation in North Wales.

A significant number of communities along the North Wales coast and in North East Wales
rank within the 20% most deprived across Wales. In particular, there is a contiguous pocket
of intense deprivation around Rhyl. Part of Rhyl West ward is the 2" most deprived in Wales
and parts of three other wards in Rhyl are within the top 20 most deprived in Wales.

In Wrexham, part of Queensway ward ranks as the 3@ most deprived in Wales. In Flintshire,
part of the Shotton Higher ward falls within the 5% most deprived. Other investment e.g. in

Tudalen y pecyn 52




skills and training will continue to be important to address sources of deprivation directly,
but the crucial question is whether better rail services would make any difference.

The distribution of projected wider economic benefits of major rail investment in North
Wales aligns spatially very well with priorities to address the worst areas of deprivation
within Wales, such as parts of Rhyl, Wrexham and Shotton. These benefits would enhance
job prospects, have the potential to raise wages in line with productivity and in due course
address social issues such as housing quality. But while improvements in connectivity (or
indeed fare reductions) can play a role in increasing labour supply participation, the
economic value of these marginal impacts is relatively small.

In practice, we believe better connectivity will stimulate demand — and strengthen the local
housing market for instance. It may discourage people from moving away from the area and
attract newcomers. It can make business activities — including for small traders or those
working from home — more efficient, and strengthen local economies.

Elsewhere, with much larger-scale investments, for instance HS2, there has been a
recognition that realisation of the full economic potential of connectivity benefits relies on
complementary measures taken locally to foster regeneration. The scale may be different
but the same applies in the North Wales case, and includes focussing spatial planning and
physical regeneration to maximise the potential of investment in the rail network and
enhanced services.

3. Investment in the railways of North Wales

Our understanding is that work by Network Rail on business cases shows that there is a very
good case for investment in the North Wales main line to increase line speeds as signalling
along the route is renewed. Journey time savings of 7 minutes can be achieved.

On the other hand, the business case for electrification Crewe — Holyhead is seen as poor —
not unsurprising given the length of route (105 miles) and modest service levels. At
enhanced service levels, there is a better case, but the BCR remains below 1. In contrast, the
business case for electrification between Crewe/Warrington and Chester is good.

Our work for the Economic Ambition Board shows that if these two routes in England to
Chester are electrified and if all services are (as would be expected) converted to electrified
operation, then there would be a sharp increase in the need for passengers to interchange
at Chester and this would have a significantly adverse impact on the North Wales economy.

This suggests to us the following:

1. Longoverdue investment in line speed improvements on the N Wales coast line,
requires minimal government funding and should be strongly supported

Tudalen y pecyn 53



2. Wales Government should press for rail industry commitment to a long term vision
for Crewe Holyhead electrification. In practice, the investment is likely to proceed in
stages and lines east of Chester could be electrified as part of the CP6 programme.

3. There are implications for rolling stock strategy from a staged electrification
approach. The risk to the Wales economy that arises from a need for passengers to
transfer between trains at Chester in the interim could be mitigated if North Wales
through services could be operated with dual mode (electric and diesel) traction and
significant investment is made in passenger facilities at Chester station

4. Subject to the additivity caveat mentioned earlier, the estimated wider social and
economic benefits could mean there is a positive electrification business case for
Wales — albeit one that DfT/Network Rail may not recognise. Welsh Government will
need to consider whether it is prepared to make a funding contribution. There could
be benefits that justify EU TENS funding too, with improved journey times (less need
to interchange) and enhanced structure gauge that could help develop railfreight.

Developments of services, in the meantime, such as from N Wales to Liverpool and to
Manchester Airport should continue to be supported. Besides their direct benefits, growth
in use of these services will strengthen the investment case for electrification.

The development at Wylfa Newydd on Anglesey is expected to involve 1,000 site workers
commuting from the mainland. With limited parking available, a shuttle bus system from a
suitable railhead is being considered and some augmentation of the rail service may prove
needed. Horizon has indicated that their aspiration would be for direct services from
Manchester Airport, given a significant number of business/work visits from overseas.

4. Comment on rail infrastructure planning

The Initial Industry Plan is formulated mainly by Network Rail and is then subject to a
process led by ORR and with the involvement of stakeholders. In the case of Network Rail’s
2015 Wales Route Plan, these options have helpfully been put forward in draft for
consideration by funders.

There is a risk from the perspective of stakeholders that this well-established planning
arrangement can emphasise inputs, such as electrification and line-speeds, rather than
outcomes in terms of better connectivity and wider economic benefits. It is also possible to
underplay the relevance of the commercial and/or subsidy implications of different train
service patterns. In the recently awarded TPE franchise, for instance, a number of new
longer-distance services (Liverpool — Scotland, for instance) were put forward by the
winning bidder and accepted by DfT, even though they were not part of the franchise
requirement. But they add commercial value — and bring wider connectivity benefits.

In the Wales context, some new long-distance services to/from Cardiff — for instance to
Leicester, Sheffield and Leeds — have been identified by Network Rail as possible conditional

Tudalen y pecyn 54



outputs. Others such as connecting up a new Cardiff - Abergavenny service with the existing
Hereford - Birmingham service to create better connectivity for South East Wales have not
been. In practice such opportunities are most likely to arise through franchise re-tendering
processes. There is scope for the National Assembly of Wales to have a direct impact on all
of the rail services specified in the next Wales and Borders franchise.

It is the provision of rail services that matters most; in some cases existing infrastructure can
support their expansion and improvement, in others not.

Topic 1: What should be the high level infrastructure development priorities — to provide
the capacity and connectivity necessary to support the social and economic well-being of
Wales?

The key strategic priorities should be (in this order):

1. Upgrading the route between Severn Tunnel Junction and Cardiff, as well as Newport
and Cardiff stations
Progressively upgrading and electrifying the North Wales Coast Main Line as a whole
3. Given its role in providing north-south connectivity, improving the Marches Line
(which is forecast to have 141% more passenger demand by 2043).

Topic 2: Do the Welsh Government’s rail infrastructure priorities meet the needs of
Wales?

Yes. Welsh Government no doubt recognises the many demands on resources in the rail
sector — so issues such as level crossing upgrades/replacement (mainly a safety measure but
also affecting journey times); expenditure on addressing areas of flood risk; and measures to
improve access and connectivity to/from stations must be considered alongside investments
to address capacity or capability improvements. Some schemes — such as the completion of
re-doubling the route between Wrexham and Chester may seem modest (although still
costly), but will be critical to the expansion of rail services in north east Wales in the years
ahead.

On North Wales, in addition to the overall conclusions in the first part of this paper, we
would highlight one of the conclusions in the report of the Ministerial Task Force on North
Wales in respect of developing transport hubs.

The Task Force report discusses the concept of ‘pulse hubs’, where trains (and buses) are
timed to connect with each other on a regular hourly (or more/less frequent) pattern. This
approach has been developed furthest in Switzerland (‘Taktfahrplan’). It would be
particularly helpful at locations such as Shrewsbury and Chester where the key Welsh east-
west routes meet a set of services onwards through England, as well as multi-modal hubs in
Wales such as Bangor. A regular pattern of 4 trains /hour operating at 15 minutes intervals

Tudalen y pecyn 55



would be possible on the North Wales coast and could bring benefits, including accelerating
the prospects of electrification.

The infrastructure implications at hub stations can be significant — requiring parallel working
of train services — and, while partially at least identified as a possible development at both
Chester and Shrewsbury, connectional (or pulse) hubs have not been identified in Network
Rail’s set of Conditional Outputs on the Wales Route Plan. The important point is that
connectional timetables can require additional investment (to allow services to arrive and
depart in parallel).

The idea of investing in better arrangements at Shotton (high and low level stations) in the
Route Plan is good (current facilities are poor for interchange), but for this to be effective
there will need to be service frequency increases at both stations.

The Task Force report separately identifies the significance of the plans for HS2 (especially
given the subsequent decision to advance the project to Crewe by 2027). We believe this
should include noting that North Wales Coast electrification would allow though North
Wales/Chester — London services to use HS2 (subject to path availability on HS2).

Topic 3: How does the development and use of rail infrastructure in England affect Wales
and vice versa?

Hugely — and direct rail services from stations in Wales to airports located in England serve
as a useful example. Service plans largely developed by Centro — and in future, by the West
Midlands or Midlands Connect transport authorities — will determine whether Wales retains
its direct rail connection with Birmingham Airport. Since in railway network terms at least,
the Welsh component is on the periphery, the English at the centre, it is inevitable with a
busy (and in much of England, congested) network that decisions taken at English locations
can have a significant impact on Wales’ rail services. Priorities for direct links to Manchester
Airport are another important example — there are more than 120,000 annual business trips
between Wales and the Airport.

A further specific infrastructure example is the planned Western Rail Access to Heathrow
(WRAtH) scheme, which is being planned to provide connections only with the ‘slow’ lines
on the GW Main Line. This risks repeating the need for a subsequent upgrade as has
happened with Airport Junction on the current Heathrow Express route. The net effect is
that the opportunity to provide direct South Wales — Heathrow trains services is currently
being lost.

Topic 4: How do plans for English devolution and for high-speed rail, electrification etc
affect Wales?

Very significantly indeed. But much of this can be regarded as an opportunity rather than a
threat. Plans for devolved bodies (such as Transport for the North) create an opportunity for

Tudalen y pecyn 56



Wales to build on the success of cross border partnerships (such as the Mersey Dee Alliance
and the collaborative arrangements between Cardiff and Bristol city councils) to foster
relationships with similarly-placed non-Westminster sub-national bodies to mutual
advantage.

Topic 5: How can the Welsh Government best engage to influence the development of
infrastructure and rail services in England and cross-border?

See answer to Topic 4. The new responsibility for the Wales & Borders franchise will shift
the balance of influence on development decisions.

Topic 6: Does the periodic review process meet the needs of Wales and how should it be
developed?

The periodic review process — the Initial Industry Plan (lIP), the high level output statement
(HLOS) and the statement of funds available (SOFA) — worked well in general until it became
clear during 2014/5 that the scale and speed of upgrade investment was undeliverable.

For Wales, there is the added involvement and complication of being a (minority) funder
and with allocation of responsibilities not always clear between Westminster and Cardiff
(e.g. initially over Cardiff — Swansea electrification funding). Absolute clarity on this area is
an essential requirement.

The process works on a quinquennial basis, and while Network Rail has usefully looked
ahead to 2033 and 2043 in its forecasting work, it does not provide for a more-than-five-
year timescale: it should do, and this should become a mandatory (regulated) requirement.

Topic 7: Is the Network Rail Wales route effective?

We are not in a position to comment on this with regard to operational matters. But we
note that its geography usefully includes the Marches line through England (but not into
Chester either from the Wrexham or Prestatyn directions).

Topic 8: What are the pros and cons of devolution of funding of Welsh rail infrastructure?

A great deal can be learned from considering the Scottish example, although the Secretary
of State for Transport has made clear that this isn’t a live issue — at least until the Shaw
Review is complete.

Tudalen y pecyn 57



Tudalen y pecyn 58



P.O. Box 1976

e rs e y ra Ve Liverpool L69 3HN
Tel: 0151 227 5181

Fax: 0151 330 1818

liam.robinson@merseytravel.gov.uk

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee
Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 06 WRI 06

Merseytravel Merseytravel

Dear Sir / Madam

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES’ ENTERPRISE & BUSINESS COMMITTEE
PRIORITIES FOR THE FUTURE OF WELSH RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE

| am pleased to set out Merseytravel’s response to the above inquiry, on behalf of
the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. This response was considered and
endorsed by the Merseytravel Committee on 7 January 2016.

Merseytravel is the Combined Authority’s lead advisory body and executive body on
transport issues across the Liverpool City Region (LCR). The LCR comprises the
local authority districts of Halton, Knowsley, Liverpool, St Helens, Sefton and Wirral
with a combined population of 1.5 million. This response is also consistent with
responses being developed by Transport for the North and Rail North and by our
cross-border partners.

Our response to the questions posed is as follows:-

1. The Liverpool City Region is pleased to engage with the National Assembly
for Wales on this important inquiry. The city region has a long history of
working jointly with Welsh Government and Welsh local authorities on issues
of cross boundary transport importance, recognising that transport networks
rarely recognise administrative boundaries.

Cont/....

2.

North East Wales, West Cheshire and parts of the LCR form part of a
common, recognisable economic and travel-to-work-area, which necessitates
east-west movements and enhanced cross-boundary multi-modal links.

2. Merseytravel's Long Term Rail Strategy from 2014 sets out the LCR’s
aspirations for rail
over the next 30
years. From a Clir Liam Robinson, Chair of Merseytravel Committee




cross-border perspective, the strategy sets out the rationale for the
development of two key routes:-

i new routes between Liverpool and Chester, Wrexham, North Wales
and Cardiff / South Wales via the reopened Halton Curve; and

ii. an incremental approach to the enhancement and long-term
electrification of the Borderlands line between Wrexham and
Bidston, to better connect areas of population and employment,
linked to a new station at Deeside Industrial Park.
The full strategy is available at the following hyperlink-

http://moderngov.merseytravel.uk.net/documents/s12878/Enc.%201%20for%
20Long%20Term%20Rail%20Strateqy.pdf

. As key partners in the Transport for the North governance structures and
workstreams, Merseytravel and the LCR are working with authorities across
the North of England to improve transport connectivity and ultimately, to
rebalance the country’s economy. The Welsh Government’s desire to engage
with Transport for the North, in recognition of its natural economic links and
significant cross-border flows of both passengers and goods between
England and Wales is warmly welcomed. The Welsh Government has been
recognised as a key stakeholder in the process, and a Memorandum of
Understanding has been agreed between the Welsh Government and
Transport for the North, to support the sharing of information and collaboration
between parties on both sides of the border.

. Merseytravel is also a long-standing member of the cross-border Mersey Dee
Alliance, recognising the interdependence between the economies of
Flintshire, Wrexham, Cheshire West and Chester and Wirral. A Communique
from the North Wales Economic Ambition Board and the Mersey Dee Alliance
sets out shared aspirations for investment and improvement in the rail
infrastructure and services of the North Wales, West Cheshire and Mersey-
Dee Alliance area. This follows the North Wales Economic Ambition Board’s
Rail Summit on 12 November 2015. Merseytravel supports the principles set
out in this Communique.

Cont/....

-3-

. Looking in more detail at the Committee’s terms of reference, it is noted that
rail infrastructure arrangements in Wales are complex; infrastructure is the

responsibility of
the Department

for Transport, but Clir Liam Robinson, Chair of Merseytravel Committee

Tudalemsy e

Registered

E451


http://moderngov.merseytravel.uk.net/documents/s12878/Enc.%201%20for%20Long%20Term%20Rail%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngov.merseytravel.uk.net/documents/s12878/Enc.%201%20for%20Long%20Term%20Rail%20Strategy.pdf

the Wales and Borders rail franchise being the responsibility of the devolved
administration. Infrastructure and service quality are intrinsically linked and
both contribute equally to creation of a quality rail product that can support
modal shift. Whilst franchising is out of the scope of this inquiry, the intrinsic
relationship between rail infrastructure and the specification of the franchise(s)
that operates on the infrastructure need to be better aligned. Indeed, unless
improved franchise specifications lead to improved service quality, in terms of
frequency, capacity and rolling stock quality, the benefits of infrastructure
enhancements will not be realised. Future Welsh franchise specifications
need to fully factor in cross-border movements and associated future demand,
with enhanced direct cross border links from key Welsh destinations to the
Liverpool City Region.

. More specifically, the need to improve direct access by rail from North Wales
to Manchester Airport and Liverpool John Lennon Airport needs to be
recognised as a priority. The two airports provide a comprehensive and
complementary portfolio of flights, collectively representing the major airports
of choice from the North Wales and borders area. It is noted that capacity
issues at Manchester may jeopardise the development of a proposed Arriva
Trains Wales service from the North Wales Coast line to Manchester Airport
in May 2016. Similarly, reinstatement of the Halton Curve, together with
capacity enhancements in the surrounding area are needed to support a rail
link from the North Wales Coast Line, Wrexham, Chester, Helsby and
Frodsham to Liverpool South Parkway for Liverpool John Lennon Airport
(points 8 and 9 below refer).

. Cross-boundary rail infrastructure issues are invariably complex, in terms of
aligning different funding sources, delivery partners and responsibilities. For
example, many Welsh rail capacity constraints are situated in England (e.g.
Northern Hub constrains or pathing constraints on the West Coast Main Line).
This can lead to complexity in terms of planning enhancements, in terms of
apportioning costs and aligning funding sources, not least given the differing
approaches to funding on both sides of the border. Equally, many decisions
on Welsh rail are significant from a cross border or English perceptive. As
such, the wider cross-boundary implications of infrastructure priorities that are
located physically in Wales need to be routinely considered in this context,
rather that solely in a Welsh context.

. As an example of the above, the single track railway track between Saltney
Junction and Wrexham on the Chester-Shrewsbury line is a barrier to the
development of new rail services from North Wales to Liverpool via the Halton
Curve.

Cont/....

-4-

Merseytravel is

promoting the Clir Liam Robinson, Chair of Merseytravel Committee

)
skl 3400
Registered

E451



reinstatement of the Halton Curve as a priority scheme within its Growth Plan,
and has provisionally allocated £10.4million of capital funding for these works
from its Growth Deal funds. The £44 million scheme promoted by Welsh
Government to redouble the track in the Rossett area is clearly welcomed,
and its role in improving north-south journey times in Wales is fully
appreciated. However, as the line will remain singled between Rossett and
Wrexham, it is unable to enhance rail access from a cross-boundary
perspective (e.g. facilitating improved rail links to Liverpool John Lennon
Airport and supporting modal shift to rail from the congested cross-border
trunk road network). Merseytravel would strongly urge the Welsh Government
to recognise the completion of the re-doubling works in the Wrexham area as
a very high funding priority, in order to release much needed rail capacity to
support growth.

Furthermore, had the limitations of the remaining section of single track been
better understood from the outset, particularly from a cross-border
perspective, English transport bodies and Local Enterprise Partnerships may
have been in a stronger position to collectively lobby for an enhanced
solution. This could, potentially, have extended to the identification of local
funding to ‘future proof’ the works more effectively. A better appreciation of
the scope of the partial redoubling project would also have helped manage
expectations with cross-border rail service aspirations.

10.Merseytravel is working closely with the Welsh Government to improve

11.

service quality on the Borderlands line between Wrexham and Bidston. Strong
and effective partnership working between the Welsh Assembly Government,
Merseytravel and other partners to date has supported the development of a
robust demand study. However, solutions will be dependent upon funds being
aligned from the separate administrations for enhanced rail infrastructure
works, whilst service enhancements ultimately need to be negotiated as part
of the Wales and Borders refranchising process, which is the responsibility of
the Welsh Government.

The clear priority is to improve the existing hourly diesel service to two
services per hour, with electrification forming a longer-term aspiration.
Notwithstanding the complexity of aligning different funds, the Borderlands
line should be recognised as a high priority by the Welsh Government in
terms of its economic importance in linking three mutually supportive
Enterprise Zones (Liverpool Waters, Wirral Waters and Deeside) and in
supporting access to education, leisure and retailing. It will also serve an
increasingly important social and economic role in the context of the new
prison being developed in Wrexham.

Cont/....

Clir Liam Robinson, Chair of Merseytravel Committee

Tudalemsy e

Registered

E451



12. These examples highlight the importance of effective joint working and
planning between Welsh and English bodies on such issues. More formal
working with English border areas should be encouraged by the Committee,
as should opportunities to align funds, which are increasingly devolved in both
England and in Wales. For example, funds for major transport schemes are
now devolved to Local Enterprise Partnership areas in England, as part of the
Local Growth Deal process.

13.The planned High Speed 2 rail hub at Crewe is vitally important from a cross
boundary point of view, and strengthens the case for the enhancement and
electrification of the North Wales Coast line from Crewe westward. This is
considered important to avoid any need for Welsh passengers to change onto
diesel trains at Crewe, and to ensure that the benefits of HS2 are felt equally
across the Mersey-Dee area.

14.The issue as to whether Department for Transport (DfT) should devolve rail
infrastructure responsibilities in Wales is not straightforward, and Merseytravel
would not wish to comment on an issue that is ultimately for Welsh partners to
reach a view upon. It is noted that most rail services in Wales have origins or
destinations in England, or else pass through significant parts of England,
which highlights the complexity of devolution in a practical sense. The key to
maximising success, irrespective of whether infrastructure decisions are
devolved by DfT or not, is to emulate the approach taken with Transport for
the North. This is in terms of developing a strong and meaningful partnership
across logical economic geographies, putting administrative boundaries to
one side, and assessing issues and problems in a strategic context across the
network as a whole. In addition, the Welsh Government should remain able to
fund additional infrastructure enhancements, as local transport authorities in
England are also able to do.

15. Looking at electrification, then decisions on rail electrification in Wales are
reliant on ‘feeder’ section from English networks being electrified too. It is
noted that a longstanding problem concerns the issue that electrification
business cases in Wales can be weaker as a result of the lower passenger
flows and associated economic benefits. This highlights the importance of
decisions being taken at a strategic level, rather than on a route-by-route
basis. This is to facilitate seamless cross-border links and avoid any need for
passengers to change from electric to diesel trains at border stations, which
would present a significant barrier. It also highlights the importance of
pursuing enhancements to existing diesel services as a priority, in order to
build patronage and help strengthen future business cases for electrification.

Cont/....

Clir Liam Robinson, Chair of Merseytravel Committee

)
skl 3400
Registered

E451



Furthermore, it is essential that the electrification of the North Wales Coast
line is viewed in the context of its wider network, and includes a phased
approach to electrifying its branches, such as the Halton Curve, the
Wrexham-Chester line and Borderlands line. This is to create a seamless
network from a rolling stock and customer satisfaction point of view.

16.Finally, whilst outside the scope of the inquiry, it is noted that a common
cause for concern from an English and Welsh perspective concerns Network
Rail’s ability to deliver rail infrastructure projects to time and to budget, and
the lack of control that local authorities have over the cost and timing of many
rail schemes, despite being the principal funding partners in many cases.
These issues are the subject of separate reviews and inquiries, and it is
assumed that the Welsh Assembly Government will be submitting evidence in
response to these.

| trust that this response is self-explanatory but should you have any queries then
please don'’t hesitate to contact me on the above telephone number, or alternatively,
my Policy Development Manager, Huw Jenkins, on 0151 330 1110.

Yours faithfully

CliIr Liam Robinson
Chair, Merseytravel Committee

Clir Liam Robinson, Chair of Merseytravel Committee

Tudalemsy e

Registered

E451



Eitem 2.2

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee
Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 04 WRI 04

Rail Freight Group Rail Freight Group

Introduction

1 Rail Freight Group (RFQG) is pleased to submit written evidence to the
Enterprise and Business Committee’s inquiry into the Priorities for the
future of Welsh Rail Infrastructure in preparation for the oral evidence
session to which it has been invited in Wrexham on 28 January.

2 RFQG is the representative body for rail freight in the UK. We campaign
for greater use of rail freight to deliver economic and environmental
benefits for the UK, in particular by ensuring that Government and rail
industry policy supports growth. We represent over 120 member
companies, active across all aspects of rail freight including freight
operating companies, port and terminal operators, suppliers and
customers.

3 Rail freight operates wholly in the private sector but it requires
appropriate infrastructure on which to operate its trains as well as
sufficient network capacity and suitable terminal facilities for receiving
and handling the traffic conveyed. It is in this context that RFG has
limited this submission to those issues raised in the consultation that
impact on the movement of rail freight.

General Policy Framework

4 RFG notes that under the proposals set out in the St David’s Day
Announcement, there is no provision for the planning and delivery of rail
infrastructure investment to be devolved to the Welsh Government (WQG)
and that it will remain with the UK Department for Transport (DfT) for
the foreseeable future. RFG does not see this as a problem because our
concern is that creating unnecessary boundaries can have a negative effect
on longer distance flows, such as most of the freight flows that currently
use the Welsh rail network. Providing the existing close working between
WG, DIT and Network Rail continues, this will not be an 1ssue from our
perspective. Indeed it will allow a continuing holistic approach to the rail

Tudalen y pecyn 65



network within Wales as part of the wider UK network with which it links
at many key places such as the Severn Tunnel, Shrewsbury and Chester.

5 In this context, RFG is concerned that one of the options for the future
organisation of Network Rail being given serious consideration in the
Shaw Review is for further devolution to the Routes throughout the UK.
This could have the effect of creating barriers to long distance freight (and
passenger) flows, which tend to cross Route boundaries, and their growth,
unless a strong System Operator role is retained at the centre exercising
control of such features as timetabling and possession planning and
ensuring that alternative routes are not affected simultaneously.

6 Another aspect of rail infrastructure that needs to be taken into account
when considering investment is that rail is, generally, a mixed use
network. As a result, plans connected with passenger focussed
developments must always take account of both current and future needs
of the rail freight market.

Responses to the specific topics raised
High level priorities

7 Currently, rail freight in Wales is concentrated on the South Wales Main
Line and the Marches Route towards both Crewe and Chester, with
limited penetration elsewhere for specific flows. Much of the tonnage
moved in Wales continues to be associated with the power generation and
steel industries, but both of these are currently undergoing significant
structural change likely to result in permanent reductions in their flows.
However, the forecasts accepted within the industry and used to underpin
Network Rail’s Long Term Planning Process indicate this decline will be
more than offset by strong growth in other rail freight sectors.

8 For example, elsewhere in the UK, there has already been significant
growth in container / intermodal flows, both domestic and to / from ports,
but this has not occurred in Wales where such flows remain limited to a
small number of services to / from the Wentloog Terminal and Barry.

9 Rail freight requires the infrastructure of the network to exhibit one or
both of the following features, depending on the particular traffic : the
capability to accept high axle-loadings (the “Route Availability’) —
essential for coal and steel flows, for example — and the capability to
accept items of large dimensions (the “Loading Gauge”) — essential for the

Tudalen y pecyn 66



movement on ordinary wagons of most containers now in general use :
specialist low-floor wagons are available but at a cost penalty.

10 Where investment in developing the rail network is being considered or
planned on a route that has the potential to carry freight now or in the
future it is important that a presumption in favour of freight is an integral
part of the decision making process.

11 As an example, electrification of the North Wales Main Line could be the
spur to the re-introduction of an intermodal freight link to Ireland via
Holyhead. However, while electrification works are usually accompanied
by an increase in “Loading Gauge” to the “W10” Gauge needed for
9ft6ins high containers to move on conventional wagons, there are some
structures which can accommodate the overhead wiring without alteration
but at a lower Gauge. A presumption in favour of freight, supported by
targeted investment by Welsh Government, (see paragraph 14, below)
would see the whole route brought to “W10”, unlocking the rail freight
potential of the line.

12 As well as the capability of accepting current and future rail traffic flows,
the rail infrastructure also requires the capacity to handle both current
traffic levels and forecast increases in both passenger and freight
movements. Higher speed limits at locations that are currently subject to
low limits, such as the entry and exit of running “Loops” that enable
freight trains to be overtaken by passenger trains, can yield significant
time savings and capacity increases. Additional signalling, allowing trains
to run closer together, also yields enhanced capacity. Such elements
should therefore be an essential part of all infrastructure investment
schemes if capacity is to match forecast increased levels of operation.

Welsh Government’s existing priorities

13 The National Transport Finance Plan (NTFP), like its predecessor the
National Transport Plan, is extremely light on freight matters except for a
commitment to support the recommendations of the Minister’s Freight
Working Group as appropriate. The NTFP therefore represents a missed
opportunity to support rail freight in Wales by targeted investment and
focussed support for infrastructure enhancements that directly benefit rail
freight.

14 One way this might be achieved could be through the creation of a

Strategic Freight Network Fund for Wales, with governance arrangements
similar to those already operating in England and in Scotland.

Tudalen y pecyn 67



Effect of rail infrastructure developments in England

15 As noted above, most freight flows cross Network Rail’s Route
Boundaries and most of the rail freight flows in Wales also cross both
these and the England/Wales border. Recent or planned investments in the
rail network in England often, therefore, directly benefit rail freight
movements to and from Wales. The converse also applies and investments
in Wales can benefit traffic to and from England.

16 The situation of the Marches line from Newport to Hereford, Shrewsbury
and Chester, most of which is currently in Network Rail’s Wales Route,
but which crosses the England/Wales border several times, shows clearly
that the networks in England and Wales are best dealt with in a unified
manner.

Impact of Planned Developments

17 While HS2 will not impact on South Wales, its opening to Crewe in 2026
will release capacity for freight on the existing West Coast Main Line that
could bring benefits for North Wales. Whether the main line to Holyhead
is electrified or not, this might include capacity for through freight trains
to the main container ports (Felixstowe, London Gateway, Southampton),
thus providing a “land-bridge” for deep sea traffic to and from Ireland as
an alternative to short sea feeder movements.

18 RFG has been involved in some of the recent meetings in North Wales
that have been aimed at enhancing the links between North Wales, and
more particularly North East Wales, with the “Northern Powerhouse”, as
well as strengthening the case for North Wales Main Line electrification.
The former includes the provision of improved transport links based
around investment in the rail network. Again, this has the potential to
provide a springboard for new freight flows on rail.

19 As noted above, RFG has concerns about possible further devolution of
responsibility for rail within England. While a local focus might improve
some aspects within travel-to-work areas, this could easily be at the
expense of longer distance traffics, both passenger and freight.

How Welsh Government can best engage
20 Continuing constructive engagement with Network Rail at both Wales

Route level and centrally, and similarly with the DfT, is the best way of
influencing decisions in England that will benefit passenger and freight

Tudalen y pecyn 68



services to, from and within Wales. However, this needs to be backed by a
holistic transport strategy that embraces all modes as well as both
passenger and freight movements, and which is seen to both affirm and
support, including financially, targeted investments within Wales.

21 An example of where Welsh Government could pursue a positive policy
of support for rail freight in Wales is in the development and/or
enhancement of rail links with the South Wales Ports — possibly including
some minor in-fill electrification schemes in addition to those currently in
progress or planned. — and with Holyhead (see also above).

22 Another key development in generating growth in rail freight would be for
Welsh Government to work with the rail freight industry and provide pro-
active support for new intermodal terminals at appropriate locations. It is
true that some hinterlands will be comparatively small in terms of
demand, but that is why positive support needs to be given to encourage
such long-term investments by the private sector. As an example, the
review and up-date of the previous North Wales Rail Freight Strategy
could well reinvigorate the case for a Deeside Consolidation Centre.

The periodic review process

23 The Inquiry remit notes that the preparations for CP6 are already under
way, so the industry is working to an eight year timescale which in some
ways is too short in a sector where investments (infrastructure, motive
power, wagons, terminals etc) often have a 20 to 50 year life-span.

24 However, this time, the preparations include Network Rail’s Long Term
Planning Process which is looking at a near 30 year horizon up to 2043.
RFG has been pleased to be involved with both the original Market
Studies under-pinning this process and with a number of the Route
Studies, including the Wales Route Study. Even though the process is
currently “paused” while the effects of the Hendy Review are assimilated,
RFG believes the process to be both robust and appropriate and the
resultant “Choices for Funders” will provide an excellent start point from
which the Welsh Government’s future rail investment strategy can be
developed in detail.

Effectiveness of Network Rail Wales Route
25 It would be inappropriate for RFG to comment on this aspect though

many of our individual members who have also been invited to give
evidence will doubtless provide pertinent comments on the issues raised.

Tudalen y pecyn 69



Effects of devolved funding for Welsh Rail Infrastructure

26 Many of the potential effects of such devolution have been highlighted or
alluded to in the foregoing paragraphs. The key point from RFG’s
perspective is that the rail network of England and Wales is a unified
network. Because of both history and geography, the Welsh network is not
a unified entity but is basically three natural extensions of the UK
Network into South, mid and North Wales. Although there are some
north-south synergies, the focus is mainly east-west in all three parts of
Wales and the planning for and investment in the rail infrastructure
therefore needs to be cross border.

27 As aresult RFG believes a unified funding model will remain the best
option, though tempered by effective local input, supported by targeted
local policies and top-up funding, such as a Strategic Freight Network
Fund for Wales, as outlined above, as well as through European grants. As
an example, if funding were fully devolved a decision could be taken in
Wales to support and enhance rail links to its Ports resulting in an increase
in freight flows to/from England which then might not be accommodated
by the rail infrastructure east of the Severn because investment there was
focussed on other priorities.

Conclusions

28 RFG believes that while not necessarily perfect, the present arrangements
for funding the rail infrastructure in Wales work well and do not need
fundamental change which could disrupt existing relationships for little or
no benefit. Creation of additional “barriers” could also deter the growth of
rail freight. Rather RFG suggests the need is for Welsh Government to
develop its existing relationships and adopt a pro-active, supportive stance
towards rail freight as part of a unified transport strategy that underpins its
investment strategy. Targeted funding, as suggested above, and the
development of appropriate links with other key stakeholders will then
ensure the effective and timely delivery of the strategy.

29 Future investments specifically aimed at enhancing and increasing rail
freight in Wales, despite the reductions in traditional traffics, should
focus on improved capability (axle-loading, loading gauge), enhanced
capacity (more signalling, higher speed layouts), extended or additional
links with the main ports in Wales (throughout South Wales and at
Holyhead), and on encouraging additional intermodal terminal capacity.

Tudalen y pecyn 70



NI Norr KGR 23

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee
Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 26 WRI 26

Rail North and Transport for the North Rail North and Transport for the North

Introduction

1. Rail North and Transport for the North welcome the opportunity to jointly respond to this
Committee’s inquiry into priorities for future Welsh rail infrastructure, which is timely in the
context of the work we are carrying out looking at both rail infrastructure and services. Transport
for the North and Rail North are closely linked and in time, it is expected that Rail North will
become part of Transport for the North.

2. Rail North Limited comprises the Local Transport Authorities (LTAs) across the North of England
and as the Rail North Partnership is responsible (jointly with the Department for Transport) for
the specification, tendering and management of the Northern and TransPennine rail franchises
due to start on 1%t April 2016. Rail North has already worked co-operatively with the Welsh
Assembly Government and the six North Wales local authorities on the North of England
Electrification Task Force project and partner authorities in the North West of England work on a
daily basis with North Wales colleagues.

3. Transport for the North (TfN) brings together local transport authorities, combined authorities
and Local Enterprise Partnerships across the North of England to work with Government,
Highways England, HS2 Ltd and Network Rail to develop a multi-modal Northern Transport
Strategy. This will set out a programme of transformational investments which will radically
improve transport connectivity across the North of England, underpinning and enhancing
economic growth in the North as part of a wider ‘Northern Powerhouse’ programme.

4. TfNis currently being established as a statutory body to advise Government on future investment
priorities. Transport for the North and the Welsh Assembly Government recently signed a
Memorandum of Understanding, ensuring that the requirements of the Welsh Assembly
Government are properly considered during the on-going development of the Northern Transport
Strategy.

5. The remit for the Committee’s inquiry is wide ranging and a number of aspects fall outside the
scope of either Rail North or TfN. This submission will therefore focus on the relationships
between North Wales and the North of England, the impact on English transport devolution on
Wales and how investment in the Welsh rail network can capitalise on complementary
investment in England.

Tudalen y pecyn 71 Page 1



| R DFIGKTF

Northern Devolution

6.

10.

There are fundamental linkages between North Wales and North West England. However,
because economic data is collected separately on either side of the national border, the combined
strength is not recognised. There are significant daily cross-border commuter flows of around
44,000 between North Wales and North West England. There is a particular focus of activity in the
‘Mersey Dee’ area which covers Wrexham, Flintshire, Denbigshire and parts of Cheshire and the
Liverpool City Region. This economic geography has a particular focus on advanced manufacturing
and innovation with major employers including Airbus, Tata, Toyota, Vauxhall/GM, JCB, Unilever
and Essar and generates GVA of £17bn per annum. Despite the size and importance of the Mersey
Dee area, intra-regional transport links are generally poor.

Across the North of England, rail use is growing — and more strongly than on other transport
modes such as bus and road passenger traffic. In this regard, our objective is to facilitate and
encourage economic growth. Better connectivity both facilitates and enhances that growth; the
Rail North Long Term Rail Strategy sets an ambitious target of doubling rail’s market share by
2032 over and above current trend growth. We have quantified the benefits of doing this at up to
£50bn (PV 2010 over a 60 year appraisal period) with GVA benefits (2025, nominal inflation) that
equate to £0.9bn per year.

Industry forecasts, which are not transformational in their nature, still suggest that rail demand
will increase by 40% by the mid-2020s. For forecast rail mode share in the mid-2020s to double
from 5.7% to 11.3%; rail demand will need to grow at around 8% per annum; an increase of 180%.
Delivery of committed investments such as the Northern Hub, the electrification programme and
introduction of new and additional rolling stock in the North of England will be necessary to meet
this demand. However, studies have shown that considerable supressed demand exists for rail
travel in the North and TfN’s Northern Transport Strategy will address this.

DfT and Rail North have recently completed the refranchising of the Northern and TransPennine
services with a transformational specification that was an essential first step for the Long Term
Rail Strategy. From April 2016 the new Northern franchise will see more than 2,000 extra services
each week, including new regional daily linkages from Chester to Leeds, an almost 40% increase
in capacity, and around an additional 400 Sunday services. This will create space for 31,000 extra
passengers travelling into the five major commuter cities of Liverpool, Manchester, Leeds,
Sheffield and Newcastle during the morning rush-hour. The next TransPennine franchise will
introduce new, direct Liverpool to Glasgow and Liverpool to Edinburgh services, double the
number of Manchester to Newcastle services, run more daily services from Manchester and Leeds
to Hull from December 2017, and an extra 9,000 seats into Manchester, Leeds, Sheffield, Liverpool
and Newcastle — an overall capacity boost of nearly 70% across the region during the morning
peak. It should be noted though that neither franchise runs services into Wales. The cross border
services are provided by Arriva Trains running services from Wales into Manchester.

In parallel to the rail franchising processes, Transport for the North is developing its Northern
Transport Strategy, which will set out a 30 year capital programme to significantly improve

Tudalen y pecyn 72 Page 2



| R DFIGKTF

connectivity and accessibility across the North of England for both passengers and freight and
covering all modes. A key element of this Strategy is the development of the ‘Northern
Powerhouse Rail’ (NPR) concept, which is a proposal to connect the North’s city regions with fast
frequent rail services. Clear ambitious targets for connectivity in terms of frequency and journey
times were published by the Government and TfN in March 2015 and are as indicated below.
These are called the ‘conditional outputs’. TfN is working in partnership with Network Rail and
HS2 Ltd to understand the means by which these outputs can best be met.

ive:

s 45
10 ‘——_._,' ﬂ Hetl Manche ster
Manchester w0 Manche ster Airport
, 20 0
‘ ”“""?,_—-—_—-'_.—-—"")—7 0 Hewcastle
]

"‘""“““”" Hull Leeds | Liverpool | Manchester | Manchester | weooacie | sheffield
Airport

Hull 45 as 75 85 105 60

Leeds 2 50 30 40 60 30

-
=

Liverpool 20 30 110 S0

Leeds

10 90 50

high 100 50

3 1 20

nl el | om
ol =] m| @
[ BT Y -

{saqnuu) 3w Aauwiner

\ @{\} @I Sheffield 5 2 2
7Y Sheffield
\ Frequency (trains per hour)
Manchester Airport

11.

12.

13.

14.

Options that meet, or move towards meeting the NPR vision are being developed through a series
of studies to establish the scale of investment required and the strength of case. This includes
looking at making use of the HS2 network where possible, upgrading existing routes, and the
construction of brand new railway lines. We are also assessing the investment needed within
cities; both at stations and on cross-city routes, to enable the fast through journeys that will make
up a coherent network rather than a series of point-to-point links.

Emerging findings from this work show that entirely new lines, or in some cases major bypasses
and cutoffs (i.e. sections of new route), may be needed to deliver the connectivity vision. In certain
locations, HS2 will play a part in delivering the transformational NPR vision. On the existing
network express; semi-fast, local and freight services run on the same, often two-track railway,
limiting its capacity to deliver transformational changes in speed or frequency. So to deliver the
transformation, new lines are needed to separate these very different types of service.

Between Liverpool and Manchester, there may be the potential to use the proposed HS2
infrastructure to achieve the output. Initial work indicates such an option may also require a new
line from Liverpool to the proposed HS2 route. Such a new line could also permit faster HS2
services between Liverpool and London.

On routes between Manchester and Leeds and Manchester and Sheffield, analysis so far suggests
that very significant sections of new line would be needed to achieve the vision for journey times
and service frequencies. However, if provided, these could free up capacity for additional local
passenger services, better serving key intermediate centres and rail freight. The proposed HS2
route offers significant potential to provide a fast link between Leeds and Sheffield.

Tudalen y pecyn 73 Page 3




15.

16.

17.

18.

| R DFIGKTF

For Newcastle and Hull, packages of upgrades to existing lines, electrification and faster trains
could improve journey times and service frequencies between the North East and Humber areas
and the rest of the North. Work is underway to explore the potential to make more intensive use
of the HS2 eastern leg connection to the East Coast Main Line to address the key constraint of line
capacity east of Leeds, as well as options on the East Coast Main Line to Newcastle and routes to
Hull.

The Northern Powerhouse Rail (NPR) proposals not only benefit the cities which it directly serves;
by transferring inter-regional rail services to a dedicated new line a significant amount of capacity
can be released on the existing rail network which could be used for enhanced commuter services.
Future work for TfN will include examining how other centres of population can be served by new
rail services There is also the option to use this capacity for freight services, exploiting the
opportunity brought about by the developments at the Port of Liverpool and offering benefits for
the large number of advanced manufacturing sites in North Wales and focused on Deeside.

The NPR proposals are underpinned by a new approach to economic development in the United
Kingdom. Connecting the individual centres of the North of England serves to strengthen their
labour and business markets, and building on their collective strengths and identities, will allow
the North’s economy to function more as a single unit.

The Welsh Government has been particularly interested in the freight and logistics element of the
NTS, given the importance of the Port of Holyhead and Deeside Industrial Estate to the North
Wales economy. Representatives of the Welsh Assembly Government have met several times with
TEN officers responsible for freight and logistics. As part of the development of a Northern Freight
and Logistics Strategy TfN held a stakeholder workshop with representatives of the North Wales
freight industry in Llandudno in December 2015.

Priorities for Improvement

19.

20.

Building on the opportunities that arise from HS2 is integral to the Northern Transport Strategy.
The planned early delivery of the High Speed 2 rail ‘superhub’ at Crewe is clearly an important
development from a cross boundary point of view and will also support the freight market through
electrification of Crewe to Holyhead. Crewe is already an important interchange location for
services from North and South Wales and this importance will increase with the arrival of HS2. An
economic assessment of the benefits of a superhub station with a direct HS2 connection,
commissioned by Cheshire East Council put the impact of such a development at £3bn in GVA and
up to 60,000 new jobs across the local and wider economic area.

This and linkages to other key destinations in the North of England supports the recommendation
of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board to electrify the North Wales Coast Line. In addition
to the general benefits of journey time reduction and capacity increase which accompanies
electrification, this would permit the introduction of direct services to the airports of Manchester
and Liverpool, improve connectivity to Chester and permit the transit of larger containers on
conventional rail wagons to and from Holyhead port. This offers an opportunity to exploit the

Tudalen y pecyn 74 Page 4



21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

| R DFIGKTF

transformational service benefits that the proposals for a Crewe HS2 superhub would bring. Rail
North and TfN see improvements to the railway in North Wales, and connectivity on to the
network in the North West of England as the key priority. This would enable cross border links to
be strengthened.

Cheshire West and Chester Council and Merseytravel are also working closely with the Welsh
Assembly Government to improve service quality on the ‘Borderlands line’ between Wrexham and
Bidston. However, solutions will be dependent upon funds being aligned from the separate
administrations for any enhanced rail infrastructure works. Service enhancements ultimately need
to be negotiated as part of the Wales and Borders refranchising process, which is the responsibility
of the Welsh Assembly Government. Notwithstanding these practicalities, the Borderlands line
should recognised as a high priority by the Welsh Assembly Government in terms of its economic
importance in linking three mutually supportive Enterprise Zones (Liverpool Waters, Wirral
Waters and Deeside) and in supporting access to education, leisure and retailing. It will also serve
an increasingly important social and economic role in the context of the new prison being
developed in Wrexham.

Decisions on rail electrification in Wales are reliant on 'feeder' sections from English networks
being electrified too. A longstanding problem is that electrification business cases in Wales can
be weaker as a result of the lower passenger flows and associated economic benefits. This
highlights the importance of decisions being taken at a strategic level, rather than on a route-by-
route basis. Rail North provided substantial support to the Electrification Task Force which was
established by the Secretary of State for Transport to provide independent advice on the priorities
for future electrification. The Welsh Assembly Government and the six North Wales Local
Authorities were involved in the work of the Task Force and the Stakeholder Reference Group.

These examples highlight the importance of effective joint working and planning between Welsh
and English bodies on such issues. More formal working with English border areas (such as the
MoU signed with TfN) should be proposed by the Committee, as should opportunities to align
funds, which are increasingly devolved in both England and in Wales

The issue as to whether the Department for Transport (DfT) should devolve rail infrastructure
responsibilities in Wales is not straightforward and we would not wish to comment on an issue
that is ultimately for Wales to reach a view upon. Itis noted that most rail services in Wales have
origins or destinations in England, or else pass through significant parts of England, which
highlights the complexity of devolution in a practical sense. In our experience, the key to
maximising success, irrespective of whether infrastructure decisions are devolved by DfT or not,
requires strong and meaningful partnership across logical economic geographies, putting, as far
as possible, administrative boundaries to one side and assessing issues and problems in a strategic
context across the network as a whole. Equally, the Welsh Assembly Government should remain
able to fund additional infrastructure enhancements, as local transport authorities in England are
also able to do.

Decisions on rail electrification in Wales are reliant on ‘feeder’ sections from English networks
being electrified too. A longstanding problem is that electrification business cases in Wales can
be weaker as a result of the lower passenger flows and associated economic benefits. This
highlights the importance of decisions being taken at a strategic level, rather than on a route-by-
route basis. Rail North provided substantial support to the North of England Electrification Task
Force which was established by the Secretary of State for Transport to provide independent advice

Tudalen y pecyn 75 Page 5



” || ﬁélrlsTH @DF:]NEPSEEIEITii

on the priorities for future electrification. The Welsh Assembly Government and the six North
Wales Local Authorities were involved in the work of the Task Force and the Stakeholder
Reference Group. Transport for the North remains an advocate of the findings of this work and
would like to see the principle, of a continuous rolling programme of electrification remain at the
heart of National rail infrastructure policy.

Tudalen y pecyn 76 age s



Gweler yr wybodaeth gefndirol a gyflwynwyd gan West Midlands Rail.

Mae’r deunydd yn cynnwys gwybodaeth gefndirol am ddau fater:

Cysylltedd HS2 a De Cymru

Trydaneiddio’r rheilffordd rhwng Wolverhampton a’r Amwythig

Tudalen y pecyn 77



Importance of Electrification of Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury Line

(Adapted from WMITA / Centro Comments to Network Rail in respect of
Electrification RUS Refresh workstream, Sept. ’13)

1 Whilst the electrification of Wolverhampton to Shrewsbury rail line is arguably a lower
priority for the West Midlands than some other routes, notably:

e Cross Country inter city core network (Derby - Birmingham — Bristol/Cardiff)
e Felixstowe — Nuneaton — Birmingham

e Chiltern Main Line

e Birmingham Snow Hill suburban network

WMITA nevertheless believes that there is a strong potential for development of the
rail passenger market on this route, as well as rolling stock and infrastructure efficiency
gains which would be realised by electrification and associated line speed
improvements between Wolverhampton and Shrewsbury.

2 The importance of Shrewsbury as the Midlands’ gateway to Mid Wales and North
Wales also needs to be recognised in the context, as does the longer term aspiration
for a more frequent, direct service from Shrewsbury and Telford to London.

3 Similarly the potential for future remapping of current “English” services out of the next
devolved Welsh rail franchise (such as the Shrewsbury to Birmingham International
portion of the current ATW network) potentially provides opportunities to strengthen

Shrewsbury’s “gateway” status, whilst improving the overall service offer to
passengers on the key Birmingham — Shrewsbury corridor.

4 Birmingham - Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury: Rolling Stock Efficiency

Following electrification of the Walsall — Rugeley route in December 2017, Birmingham
— Shrewsbury will be one of only two London Midland New St service groups (the other
being Birmingham to Hereford) still operated by diesel rolling stock.

The current London Midland Birmingham — Shrewsbury service is very inefficient in its
use of rolling stock. On a daily basis around 8 different 3 or 4 car trainsets are used to
provide the basic hourly off-peak service and 3 additional peak services and there are

some long layovers at the Shrewsbury end of the route e.g. between 12.12 and 14.47

when trains are effectively standing idle.

Electrification and use of electric trains (EMUSs) with higher acceleration characteristics
than the existing rolling stock on the Shrewsbury would allow more efficient
diagramming of trains across London Midland’s Birmingham services leading to a
reduction in the overall rolling stock requirement.

5 Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury Electrification: Efficient Use of Infrastructure

There are some longstanding issues with the overall service pattern since, although
there are two trains an hour from Birmingham to Shrewsbury, these arrive in

Tudalen y pecyn 78



Shrewsbury within 4 minutes of each other, whilst in the opposite direction the two
trains depart Shrewsbury within 14 minutes of each other.

LM | ATW Gap ATW | LM Gap
between between
Services Services
Birmingham | XX05 | XX23 18 Shrewsbury | XX33 | XX47 14
Shrewsbury | XX14 | XX19 4 Birmingham | XX28 | XX55 27

This not only represents an inefficient use of the double track infrastructure between
Wolverhampton and Shrewsbury but also provides a poor service offer for the
passenger.

Electrification and use of EMUs would enable the London Midland Shrewsbury
services to be better integrated with others on the busy Wolverhampton — Birmingham
corridor and offer greater scope for retiming services to improve the overall service
pattern and reduce journey times.

There is also a potential synergy here between electrification and the now abandoned
Control Period 4 proposal to improve the line speeds on the route with an opportunity
to maximise the benefits of both proposals and to minimise the disruption during the
necessary infrastructure enhancement works.

Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury Electrification: Future Capacity Requirements

In spite of the poor service offer, local rail passenger growth on the Shrewsbury route
is continuing to grow at over 3% p.a.

Centro/WMITA believe that there is strong scope for even greater passenger growth
on this corridor if the poor generalised journey times to Birmingham (currently over an
hour for all stations on the route) can be reduced through the provision of a more
frequent (2 tph) local service.

Again it would be easier to integrate this increase in service frequency with existing
London Midland electric services on the Birmingham - Wolverhampton corridor if all
regional services were provided by electric trains.

Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury Electrification: Connectivity to London

London connectivity remains a key issue for passengers, local authorities and
businesses in the Shrewsbury and Telford areas. Virgin Trains’ recent restoration of a
limited service using diesel Voyager trains has had strong regional support, but it is
recognised that, with these trains potentially being replaced by new electric trains in
the next West Coast Franchise from 2017 (as proposed by both short-listed bidders for
the previous cancelled franchise competition), these new services may only provide a
stop-gap solution.

Electrification of the route (ideally including the Bushbury — Oxley chord at
Wolverhampton) would provide much greater operational flexibility in terms of options
to serve this market on a sustainable long term basis and would allow, for example,
some Wolverhampton to London services to start/terminate at Shrewsbury, without
requiring any additional train paths on the West Coast Main Line.

Tudalen y pecyn 79



10

Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury Electrification: Regional Connectivity

Post-HS2 there will also be greater scope to improve cross-regional services and
provide greater connectivity to centres such as Birmingham Airport and Coventry.

Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury Electrification: Delivering Economic Benefits

Reducing the Generalised Journey Time to Birmingham for stations on the
Wolverhampton to Shrewsbury line, through a combination of faster electric journeys
and a more frequent service, is likely to deliver substantial economic benefits
especially to Shrewsbury, Wellington and Telford.

Additionally, facilitating the sustainable provision of direct service to London for the
longer term is also regarded as essential for the long term economic prosperity of
Shropshire and the wider area.

Overall Vision for Shrewsbury — Wolverhampton - Birmingham Corridor

The Shrewsbury — Wolverhampton rail corridor, whilst relatively poorly served at the
moment continues to see strong growth. This appears to be indicative of significant
latent demand which could be realised if the Generalised Journey Times into
Birmingham could be reduced through a combination of faster journey times, more
frequent services and a more evenly spread service pattern. Such improvements
would also appear to be capable of delivering significant economic benefits.

The demand for direct connectivity to London has been reflected in Virgin Trains’
reintroduction of a limited service to Euston using diesel trains. The West Midlands
Regional Rail Forum’s Vision is for there to be an hourly Shrewsbury — Telford —
London service via the West Midlands.

The future base service pattern is therefore likely to be significantly greater than
today’s poorly spaced 2 trains per hour (1 London Midland one ATW).

Hourly Service West West IC West Wales
Aspiration by Midlands Midlands Coast Franchise
Franchise ?
BHM —
Route BHM - SHR BHM - SHR | EUS - SHR | Mid/North
Wales
. . All Stations SHR -
Stopping Pattern All Stations or Semi-East SHR - TFC WLN - TEC
Train Type Electric Electric Electric Diesel

The issue of whether the direct Birmingham to North / Mid Wales service will continue
in its current form as part of a future devolved Welsh franchise is obviously a matter for
consideration by the Welsh Government and Department for Transport. However, if
the Wolverhampton — Shrewsbury route were to be electrified then such a service
would almost certainly be the only diesel passenger service on an otherwise fully
electric route.

Tudalen y pecyn 80



Summary

This improved passenger service offer, coupled with the potential efficiency gains from
removing one of the few remaining diesel-operated regional services into Birmingham
New St, supports the case for the Wolverhampton - Shrewsbury line to be electrified.

In 2014, the cost of this electrification and associated line speed improvements was
estimated (at a high level) to be in the order of £80m. However, no significant work on
the development of this scheme has yet been undertaken.

Tudalen y pecyn 81



York

Preston Bradford

GREATER WEST YORKSHIRE =
MANCHESTER

Wigan

(¢) Manchester

MERSEYSIDE

Liverpool Y Warningto
" ® ) S Manchester
R © Airport

o) _Fothernam
Sheffield Meadowhall

SOUTH YORKSHIRE

The Maps released by
DfT in 2012/3 for Phase 2
of HS2 demonstrate the
potential for High Speed

“Classic Compatible” high weruomor = g3
speed rail services from
the North to South West
and South Wales

Crewe
Nottingham

East Midlands Hub

Stafford @
! EAST MIDLANDS

®  Leicester

Birmingham Interchange

Cardiff o o Bristol Old Oak Common M)

London

Heathrow (Eastce)

Airport

The Government’s January 2013 “High Speed Rail
Investing in Britain’s Future” publication explicitly
stated that:

“Bristol could gain services running on the existing line
to Birmingham, and then on at high speed towards
Leeds and Manchester, Newcastle and Scotland”

For this to become a reality there needs to be a physical
connection between Phase 1 of the HS2 route and the
“classic” rail network in the Birmingham area.

However, not even “passive provision” for such a
connection is included in the current Hybrid Bill

Tudalen y pecyn 82

22/01/16



22/01/16

According to Network Rail's Long Term Planning
Process 2013 Long Distance Market Study,

the market for inter city travel across Birmingham
between North and South West / South Wales is likely
to increase substantially by 2043

Forecast

Passenger Nottingham | Sheffield Leeds Manchester
Growth

To 2043

Bristol 96% 133% 128% 188%
Cardiff 132% 221% 252% 242%

Potential Impact of
HS2 on Journey Times

HS2 . )
) : Via direct rail
Journey Times (Changing )
. Current . connection to
(Approximate) stations
L HS2
in Birmingham)
Cardiff 3 hours 25 3 hours 10 2 hours 45
Manchester
Cardiff - Leeds| 4 hours5 3 hours 25 3 hours

Tudalen y pecyn 83



Splitting High Speed Services Between City
Stations is Common Practice Elsewhere

Lille Flandres dep 07:01
1:01
. TGV
Paris Nord arr 08:02
Lille Europe dep 07:13
1:01
TGV
Paris Nord arr 08:14
Lille Flandres dep 07:41
1:03
‘ TGV
Paris Nord arr 08:44
Lille Europe dep 08:13
Paris Nord arr 08:44 101 Tev

Costs and Benefits

* Passive provision for a link to national rail network
on Birmingham - Water Orton Corridor would
probably cost less than £20m - considerably
cheaper than the £50m originally allocated to the
Heathrow junctions

* The West Midlands HS2 connections would have
immediate benefits if actually built in terms of:

— Operational flexibility
— Depot access

— Ability to serve other destinations (e.g. Wolverhampton
via Birmingham New St) with classic compatible trains
(subject to market demand/business case)

Tudalen y pecyn 84

22/01/16



At least Three high level options appear to
exist for a connection between HS2 and
Birmingham - Water Orton Rail Corridor

e Curzon St Station / Proof House Junction Area

* Washwood Heath Depot Area
(Western End of Bromford Tunnel)

e Castle Bromwich Junction Area
(Eastern End of Bromford Tunnel)

The Castle Bromwich Area connection option
would appear to have some advantages:

* minimal impact on the proposed HS2 alignment
and construction

* avoids complicated station and depot areas

* possible opportunity to incorporate the crossing of
the HS2 line by the (towards Birmingham)
connection spur into the design of the proposed
Bromford tunnel and tunnel portal

this could assist the provision of a grade-separated
flyover and minimise cost

Tudalen y pecyn 85

22/01/16



High level concept for a direct rail connection (blue)
between HS2 and Birmingham — Water Orton ralil
corridor (black) in the Castle Bromwich Junction area

1] R #F
$

WELIN AVENUE

‘ o
M= TEay
= »:!—;:,,:7.....'1'1 A,
| L e --.l.l.ll......lfl AN S o )
gl ey E R L5, = S e
e : == } e Ee
& = < & L ﬁ"'\“ S
ol o % = - o g SN
E : = % ..A".... ¢
S L
| W7 Y =
7 =
= -
- o
7 o
§ o
S e = = oRE s
=== ; JSona BN 0
Borough
. s e
Bora,

(Route of Potential Link is Purely Indicative!)

Opportunity to
Create a High
Speed Line which
is properly p D
integrated into 3 ;
the rest of the
national rail
network

Tudalen y pecyn 86

22/01/16



30 November 2015 HS2 Command Paper

* Confirms UK Government has abandoned the option to link HS2 to
the classic rail network in the West Midlands area

¢ Concludes that: “Bristol, Gloucestershire & South Wales will still
benefit from HS2 by a reduction in travel times for journeys to the
north of England”

WMITA Perspective

The need to change stations in Birmingham will probably incur an
interchange penalty of circa 30 minutes for passengers from S Wales

As an alternative, the Camp Hill Chords proposal and expanded
capacity at Birmingham Moor St Station could allow:

* some South West / Wales services to use Moor St instead of
Birmingham New St Station, which would provide:

* passengers with a much simpler connection to the adjacent HS2
station reducing the interchange penalty to perhaps 15 mins

N AN 7
Birmingham New St

Route Study as preferred 2026 option to deliver West
additional rail capacity into Central Birmingham

Tudalen y pecyn 87

To Water Orton
From Snowhill Station
Moor Street Station o Hill ines 'ﬁ'fﬁ'zhsﬂ'“)/ Ll
e — o A
2E - ra = ——lpé& mn\{a 5
= Chord Lines ‘:h}\ Hgledg Gr&m
i SouthOChord x INCamp Hill Lines
Camp Hill Chords & Birmingham Moor St Station
Expansion are part of GBS LEP HS2 Growth Strategy
and expected to feature in West Mids & Chilterns "™

Midlands ITA

22/01/16



Eitem 2.4

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes

Enterprise and Business Committee

Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng
Nghymru

Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

WRI 30

WRI 30

Trenau Arriva Cymru

Arriva Trains Wales

Tudalen y pecyn 88




Priorities for the future of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

1. Introduction

Arriva Trains Wales has been operating the Wales and Borders Franchise since 2003
which delivers over 950 train services per day in Wales and the Borders. Arriva have
overseen a transformation of the railway in Wales since commencing the franchise in 2003.
With a new timetable delivering hundreds of new journeys each day, a focus on driving
punctuality and reliability and the highest levels of customer satisfaction seen on the
network we have seen passengers returning in ever increasing numbers to our services.
This evidenced by journey growth from 18m in 2003 to in excess of 31m in 2015.

In order to accommodate this growth it is timely that the Enterprise and Business
Committee has requested evidence on a number of key issues to define the strategic
approach to provision of rail infrastructure in Wales. Arriva Trains Wales is pleased to give
our views from a passenger train operation perspective.

2. Rail infrastructure priorities

Arriva Trains Wales view of rail infrastructure priorities to provide capacity and connectivity,
necessary to support social and economic wellbeing of Wales is about maximising timetable
flexibility in infrastructure to allow improvements to timetables to meet changing priorities
and demands.

Many parts of Wales still have long signalling sections, low speed profiles, short platforms
and single lines with passing loops (passenger and freight) which makes it difficult to change
and improve timetables without having a negative impact in other areas. We recognise that
there are schemes seeking to address some of these issues. However, there is still much
work to do to achieve flexible infrastructure and maximise track and signalling layouts and to
provide track quality where we can utilise the full potential of our trains so to improve end to
end journey times for customers.

We very much support the proposed electrification of the Valleys Network and hope that the
funding can be found for the whole of the current system in this area to benefit. We are also
supportive of further electrification in other areas such as the North Wales coast. There is for
us, a clear rationale of linking the North Wales coast both to the West Coast and
electrification in Manchester. Electrification has proven benefits both in terms of long term
system costs but also in improved journey times and reliability of the rolling stock. We would
also note that while the Marches route is a key strategic link for Wales rail, bridging North
and South, the main passenger flows are east/west in both North and South Wales. We
would like to see modern infrastructure (electrification, stations, track and signalling)
supporting these key flows.

Tudalen y pecyn 89



However, infrastructure improvements/enhancements may not always be the answer to solve
the capacity challenge, as for example, value for money maybe better tackled through longer
trains.

It is important that all aspects of the rail system are considered so we believe it is important
that Government has a clear rolling stock strategy linked to infrastructure improvements to
ensure funded improvements can have timely and maximum benefits.

In terms how far infrastructure priorities go for Wales, it is encouraging to see the additional
funding from both Governments in respect of stations, particularly in important areas such as
improving accessibility and the environment for customers. However, there are still many
stations that still exist which could benefit from further investment. For example, only
approximately 50% of the number of stations in Wales are fully accessible albeit by footfall
we have over 80% accessible. Rail plays a vital role in social and economic inclusion and
‘how accessible” the system is (stations and rolling stock) should form an important
consideration for Government. We have previously made recommendations in this respect in
evidence given to the communities and local government committee.

We were pleased and encouraged to see the report into the Rugby World Cup making a key
recommendation for the need to modernise Cardiff Central station so that it can be fit for
purpose for when Cardiff hosts special events. However, it is not only the station that needs
improving but also the track and signalling capacity needed on the infrastructure into and out
of Cardiff. Funding for such a scheme is for us a high priority.

We welcome the Welsh Governments ambitious plans for the Metro in South Wales which at
its heart will likely involve substantial and prolonged infrastructure works in order to make the
ambition a reality.

Arriva Trains Wales engages with Network Rail on their Wales Route Study which identifies
infrastructure opportunities for funders. We are supportive of the work undertaken by
Network Rail and believes it essential that funding is provided to meet the current and
expected rise in demand of passenger numbers in Control Period 6 and beyond to 2029.
ATW understands the draft study is currently being finalised and will be published shortly.

We would like to comment on the impact to Wales regarding the development of
infrastructure in England. Certainly in this Control Period (5) we have seen and experienced
significant poor delivery from project teams brought into the Wales Network Rail route. It is
clear that Network Rail have been active in addressing project delivery issues and some
improvement has been seen. However, problems remain and it is regrettable that this history
of poor delivery may jeopardise future 3" party funding or lead to increased Network Rail
costs (and hence less delivery for the funds available) as they become even more risk
averse. There is also a key question for Network Rail as to whether as part of its route
devolution that each route should have the resources available to deliver large scale

Tudalen y pecyn 90



infrastructure changes. If perhaps for economies of scale this doesn’t happen then Wales will
remain beholden to Network Rail central project teams for delivery of critical welsh projects.

In this sense we would observe that Network Rail resources, which are managed centrally
place a low priority on Welsh based schemes. So for example the Great Western and
Crossrail take precedence over critical welsh projects such as Cardiff area Signalling
Renewal. This both delays the welsh programme (and benefits), imports risk and means
Wales has sub optimal time for delivering the works with least disruption.

3. Impact of key planned developments in England and vice versa

When considering the impact to Wales on the planned developments such as High Speed,
Electrification and Northern Hub, there is a risk schemes in England do not fully consider
cross border opportunities which as mentioned above is a key passenger flow for Wales.
Northern Hub for example has increased platform capacity at Manchester Airport which ATW
are now fighting to utilise due to a bias towards English train companies. The knock on
effects of delays against programmes in England can also have implications in Wales.

It's important from a UK perspective any development of rail infrastructure either side of the
border is consistent and “joined up® to enable seamless and efficient cross border services.

Welsh rail passengers do feel the “pain” during planned developments in England and it may
be difficult for customers to see the benefits. For example, Virgin Trains not running through
to North Wales due to engineering works in the Watford area dis-benefits Wales and the
benefits may not be realised by the local market.

As the major schemes in England develop such as HS2 it will be important that Wales
Government continues to engage and influence infrastructure developments with both
Network Rail and the Department for Transport and ensure there is benefit for Wales.

4. Periodic Review Process

We believe that the natural extension of rail powers being devolved in the future to Welsh
Government, is that Wales (like Scotland) should have its own funding and High Level Output
Specification agreed with the Regulator. This will protect investment in Wales and ensure key
priorities for Wales are funded.

Tudalen y pecyn 91



5. The effectiveness of the Network Rail Wales Route

As part of devolution the Wales Route was created in 2011 from the LNW and Western
Routes. We work closely with NR Wales identifying opportunities for infrastructure
improvements. In general it does feel Wales route has the right strategy but is often
restricted in what it can deliver by the funding it is allocated from its centre. There is much
more we would like Network Rail to deliver but funding constraints restrict this. We are
unclear on whether the funding allocated to the Wales Route is sufficient to meet its needs.
We understand how the route apportions its budget as it sees best to meet local conditions
but this is based on a top down allocation rather than a bottom up assessment of need. The
recent autumn season and failure to tackle a number of areas were a good illustration of this
point.

In terms of structure, many of the infrastructure projects in Wales currently sit outside the
route and is managed by a central project team. This does have issues with the different
needs and priorities of the route and project team.

We have seen significant investment in the network recently by both Network Rail and Welsh
Government which is welcomed and will assist the long term development of the network.
However, this does have a detrimental short term impact on customers during delivery which
may be difficult for some customers to understand as the benefits are manifested later. A
clear strategic delivery plan for all infrastructure improvements will be beneficial for both
customer communication and certainty.

6. Devolving funding for Welsh rail infrastructure

We believe devolved funding will bring decision making closer to the point of need. In
principle this would seem to be sensible. However the key risk is whether sufficient funding
will be devolved in order to allow the sustainability and more importantly the growth of the rail
system in Wales. It will thus become even more important that with the constraints on the
public purse that infrastructure change is delivered on time and to budget.

Tudalen y pecyn 92



Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes Enterprise and Business Committee
Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Inquiry into the Priorities for the future
dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Nghymru

WRI 10 WRI 10

Great Western Railway Great Western Railway

Priorities for the future of Welsh Rail Infrastructure

Submission by Great Western Railway (GWR)

Mae Great Western Railway (GWR) yn falch o gael gwahoddiad i1 gyfrannu i’r ymchwiliad hwn ar
flaenoriaethau’r strwythwaeth rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru, gan Bwyllgor Menter a Busnes Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol Cymru.

Mae GWR yn rhan o First Group, un o gwmniau trafnidacth mwyaf y byd, sydd yn darparu
gwasnaethau trenau a bysus drwy Brydain. Mae gweithgaredd y cwmni yng Nghymru yn cynnwys
gwasnaethau trenau GWR a hefyd gwasanaethau bysus FirstCymru, yn Abertawe a Gorllewin Cymru.
Mae GWR yn darparu 127 o wasanaethau bob diwrnod gwaith i mewn ac allan o Gymru, yn cynnwys
gwasnaethau 1 Lundain a Bryste.

Nid does unrhyw wrthwynebiad gennym i’r ddogfen hon fod yn gyhoeddus, ac oes bydd angen
unrhyw wybodaeth neu eglurhad pellach, byddem yn falch o helpu.

Great Western Railway (GWR) is pleased to be invited to contribute to this inquiry on priorities for
the future of Welsh Rail Infrastructure by the National Assembly for Wales Enterprise and Business
Committee.

GWR is a part of FirstGroup, one of the largest public transport operators in the world, providing rail
and bus services across the UK. In Wales, the Group's activity includes GWR train services and also
FirstCymru bus services in Swansea and west Wales. GWR operates 127 services every weekday in
and out of Wales, including services to London and Bristol.

We have no objection to placing this submission in the public domain, and we would be happy to help
if any further details or any clarification are required.

Our Response to the Questions Posed:

High level priorities for the development of rail infrastructure to provide the capacity and
connectivity necessary to support the social and economic well-being of Wales;

Cardiff and the Cardiff Capital Region play an important role in the economic well-being of Wales.
As such it needs a transport infrastructure that allows growth to take place and for that to happen
Cardiff needs a rail station that befits a capital city. The Rugby World Cup highlighted the
deficiencies for passengers circulating around the station and waiting on platforms along with the
infrastructure not being suited to an intensive train service required for a major event

To deliver a step change in passenger movement from the station post-event significant changes need
to be made to the station to improve passenger flows and to the track to allow more frequent
departures. In addition, the regular passenger flows are anticipated to increase significantly due to the
expected growth in modal shift to rail following electrification of the Great Western mainline and the
replacement of the High Speed Trains with new modern Super Express Trains as part of the Intercity
Express Programme which together will deliver faster journey times. Passenger numbers are forecast
to rise from 13m to 22m by 2023 (Wales Route Study 2014/15 pg27). The new trains with greater

1
Tudalen y pecyn 93




capacity will encourage more people to travel by train for events in Cardiff; particularly as the City,
and South Wales, continues to attract world class events.

Rail has demonstrated its ability to move large crowds, over long distances quickly, effectively and
safely. Changing the layout of Cardiff Central would transform the experience of fans and visitors to
Cardiff, as well as protecting Cardiff’s commuters and business travelers.

Such improvements are important to allow the full benefits of the Great Western Main Line
Electrification Programme (GWEP) to be utilised. This programme will see GWR operating Super
Express Trains, which can run in 9 or 10 car formations. In addition each carriage is also longer than
those in the current High Speed Train fleet enabling more people per train service to travel. In
addition, the electrification programme supported by improvements in infrastructure, will allow GWR
to use its new fleet of four-car Class 387 electric trains provided for the London Thames Valley to
provide additional capacity during major events in Cardiff.

Each of these Class 387 trains can run in 12 car formations and seat 675 passengers in a 2+2 seating
layout with scope for many more to stand for shorter distances. Given this potential GWR has sought
to ensure that these trains will have route clearance to Cardiff and, once the line is electrified, we can
bring these trains to the City on match days. In the near future, GWR will have a significant uplift in
ability to transport large volumes of people quickly; the restricting factor will then become the station
capability.

The benefits of our Super Express Trains and occasional use of Class 387 trains will be enhanced with
the proposed increase in line speed improvements between Cardiff and Severn Tunnel.

Underpinning all these schemes however is electrification of the Great Western Main Line to South
Wales, and although it is now clear that full electrification will take place later than Network Rail
originally planned, Sir Peter Hendy’s initial report does confirm that the work will go ahead, albeit
over a longer period. It is however important to note that expected delivery of our new long distance
train fleet for South Wales from 2017 is not affected by Network Rail’s new timescale, and we are
working hard with the Department for Transport to look at ways we can deliver the full package of
jointly promised benefits we want to deliver for our customers in Wales, despite the challenges
Network Rail faces.

Journey time improvements to and from South Wales are key, particularly given that the capability of
the new trains being introduced by GWR will be held back by line speeds. The infrastructure should
be updated to match the opportunities provided by electrification reducing the time taken between
Cardiff and London, including central London through Crossrail, Heathrow, Gatwick and HS2.

How far Welsh Government’s rail infrastructure priorities, including those in the National
Transport Finance Plan, and the Ministerial Task Force on North Wales Transport report meet
the needs of Wales;

In broad terms we felt that the National Transport Plan and subsequent Finance Plan set out a
comprehensive range of rail infrastructure projects. It was also supported by a comprehensive range
of data and analysis and we recognise the role that the rail industry and GWR has to support the
Welsh Government’s development and delivery of its rail infrastructure programme. Key to this is a
process for development phase of projects to give that flexibility in the programme should any new
funding opportunities emerge during the relative short timescale of the National Transport Plan.

Therefore, we see the creation of the new Transport for Wales company, which will take forward the
re-letting of the next Wales and Borders franchise and delivery of the Cardiff Capital Region Metro,
as being crucial to developing a rolling programme of rail projects. We look forward to working with
the new body on schemes in South Wales.

Tudalen y pecyn 94



We also welcome the opportunity to work in both the development and implementation stages of the
Cardiff City Deal which again provides an opportunity to provide a significant step change to rail
infrastructure in South Wales.

How the development and exploitation of rail infrastructure in England affects Wales, and vice
versa;

Schemes such as -expansion of capacity and capability through Reading Station redevelopment;
redoubling of a significant section of the North Cotswold line and reinstatement of double line
between Swindon and Kemble on the South Cotswold route have helped unlock previous constraints
on maintaining the train service between Wales and England. Moreover, the ongoing work to electrify
of the mainline from London to South Wales and of Crossrail to Reading will allow the new Super
Express Trains to bring Wales closer to London and the South East in terms of journey times.

Similarly, the proposed four-tracking and electrification of the Filton Bank, north of Bristol, will
provide additional infrastructure capacity needed on the Cardiff-Bristol route, which continues to see
year on year passenger growth. This scheme will not only provide for the planned additional London
to Bristol services, but will also improve reliability of all services, including the Anglo-Welsh
commuting, business and leisure services that we operate. This infrastructure also opens the
possibility of providing new rolling stock strategies for South Wales to Bristol and beyond, something
which we are committed through our new franchise agreement to investigate.

The importance of international links to Wales is well known and we continue to support the proposed
new Western rail access to Heathrow; when delivered this will bring South Wales closer to Heathrow
by around an hour, through connections at Reading and/or Slough improving access to and from the
international market which Wales wants to attract.

The likely electrification of the route from Birmingham to Bristol is also worth noting. This creates
further opportunities to provide connectivity from South Wales to HS2 at Birmingham and on to the
North of England / Scotland.

All these infrastructure investments highlight the need to ensure Cardiff Central station has the
capability to create a positive, lasting impression of the city both day to day and during major events.

Tudalen y pecyn 95



The impact on Wales of key planned developments in England including High Speed Rail,
electrification, Northern Power House / Transport for the North, and wider devolution of
responsibility for rail within England;

GWR works closely with Local Enterprise Partnerships across England. The likes of the West of
England Partnership leading on the development of the Metro West rail network in the Greater Bristol
area, and Cornwall and Isles of Scilly LEP, along with Cornwall Council’s commitment to a series of
rail improvement programmes funded by European funding have shown how decisions and a
momentum at a local level has helped develop the infrastructure business and councils see as crucial
to the economic growth in their communities. We are keen on developing this level of partnership in
South Wales to benefit local communities along the route

In terms of High Speed Rail, there will be a direct opportunity and impact of HS2 — London to the
North via the West Midlands — with the planned creation of an interchange on the Great Western
Main Line at Old Oak Common two miles outside Paddington. This will help release the potential for
journey time savings between London and the North of England (and beyond) on HS2, although in so
doing it underlines the importance for the competitiveness of South Wales of introducing route
electrification and other infrastructure improvements as quickly as possible.

How Welsh Government can best engage with and influence infrastructure developments in
England and the development of passenger and freight services using the network;

It is important that as the electrification programme develops and rail franchise negotiations take
place that the Welsh Government continue to press the case for Welsh schemes with the Department
for Transport and Welsh Office. We are part of a Wales Rail Industry Leaders group lead by the
Welsh Government, where senior officials from rail companies and senior civil servants share
dialogue and understanding of the strategic directions being taken by all parties. This group is linked
to the national Rail Delivery Group and the planning process for investment in the railway through the
development of the Initial Industry Plan and Strategic Business Planning process. This shows the
extent to which the Welsh Government is committed to working with others to develop the rail
network outside of Wales.

Both the UK and Welsh Governments are aware of the challenges we have in accommodating growth
against the funding constraints that we have; and both Governments are supportive of our drive to do
the right things in terms of improving performance and customer satisfaction, and in running an
efficient rail network.

Whether the periodic review process meets the needs of Wales and takes account of the needs of
Welsh passenger and freight users, and how this should be developed;

The fact that funding for Welsh rail infrastructure is not devolved. The advantages,
disadvantages, opportunities and risks potentially associated with devolution.

The effectiveness of the Network Rail Wales Route and whether the approach to delivery of
network management, maintenance, renewal and enhancement functions are effective in
delivering value for money, capacity, frequency, speed, reliability and handling disruption for
passengers and freight users in Wales;

The Periodic Review Process overseen by the Office of Rail and Road (ORR) fits within a group of
processes and systems in the rail industry. As Periodic Reviews have evolved, however, we have
pressed the case for the setting of outputs and efficient levels of expenditure at a route level
supporting the devolution that has occurred within Network Rail.

Tudalen y pecyn 96



There remains potential for future efficiencies to be realised from closer cooperation between TOCs
and NR routes in finding cost effective ways to deliver locally agreed outputs. Such a situation exists
within the GWR area and our involvement in Network Rail’s Western Route programme of rail
infrastructure and alliance, and where both at director level and at key levels throughout both
organisations we work together on finding ways to deliver locally agreed outputs. The evidence from
work undertaken by NR at Reading in 2014 and 2015, and around Bath in 2015 shows the benefits of
this alliance and we feel there is no reason why the same could not be achieved in Wales, particularly
around key schemes such as Great Western Main Line Electrification to Swansea.

In terms of devolution of funding rail infrastructure to Wales, we would again support the view that
there should be greater clarity on the level of funding, in terms of operations, maintenance, renewals
and enhancements of the infrastructure at a Wales route level. That need not necessarily require full
devolution for funding rail infrastructure to Wales. The Metro West project in Greater Bristol is
funded through UK Government as part of an Enterprise Zone, and the Cornwall Rail Improvement
Programme uses European funding to lever Central UK government funding; both schemes are
possible within the current system of responsibilities for rail infrastructure at a regional and UK level.
The focus for that level of government with their rail infrastructure schemes has been the need to
influence and prescribe their outputs to Network Rail, and that has been achieved without full funding
responsibility for the rail infrastructure.

So far as our involvement with Network Rail’s Wales Route is concerned, we work closely with them
at both a strategic and daily operational level. As evidenced by the efforts during the Rugby World
Cup and regular challenges faced on Wales rail network.

However we are concerned that the lessons learned from the Rugby World Cup and the general day to
day increase in patronage expected in the coming years are not being incorporated in the plans for
Cardiff Central station. This is an opportunity to create a world class station to support a world class
event location in a world class city — this opportunity should not be lost.

We welcome the agreement between the UK and Welsh Governments that will see the next franchise
let by Welsh Government and the formation of the new Transport for Wales body that will oversee
this process.

The nature of the railways in Wales is similar to that in Scotland and, through FirstGroup and our
tenure of the ScotRail franchise between 2004 and 2015, we have seen the benefits that local
governance has had in this context. This model also enabled us to work closely with Transport
Scotland and Network Rail to deliver additional benefits to rail users, including infrastructure
schemes such as electrification of Paisley Canal to provide improved services, efficiently, effectively
and for reduced cost.

Tudalen y pecyn 97



ujliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

\ | a Busnes
National Assembly for Wales
Enterprise and Business Committee

Jocelyn Davies AC

Cadeirydd

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

18 lonawr 2016

Annwyl Jocelyn,
Craffu ar y Gyllideb Ddrafft 2016-17

Ar 14 lonawr 2015, clywodd y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes dystiolaeth gan Julie
James, y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg, a swyddogion o’r Adran Addysg,
ar ei phortffolio ei hun, ac ar bortffolio y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau.

Roedd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno tynnu sylw at dri maes pryder a gododd o’n gwaith
craffu ar y rhannau addysg a sgiliau o’n cylch gwaith.

Effaith gostyngiadau cyllidebol ar gyllidebau Refeniw a Chostau Cynnal
Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru

Roedd y Pwyllgor yn pryderu’n fawr am y newidiadau arfaethedig i’r cyllid ar gyfer
y sector addysg uwch, a bydd yn gofyn am ragor o gyfleoedd i graffu ar:

= ygostyngiad o £20m i refeniw Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru; ac
» ygostyngiad 0 £0.277m (-10%) i gostau cynnal Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch
Cymru.

Mae maint y toriadau hyn yn codi cwestiwn ynghylch a fydd y cyngor cyllido yn
gallu cyflawni ei amcanion.

O ran y gostyngiadau arfaethedig i'r gyllideb refeniw addysg uwch, roedd y
Pwyllgor yn ei chael hi’n anodd asesu effaith bosibl y toriadau heb ryw arwydd
ynglyn a’r blaenoriaethau y bydd y Gweinidog yn eu nodi yn ei lythyr cylch gwaith
blynyddol i’r Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch. Dywedwyd wrthym y bydd y Cyngor yn

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
er‘«// SeneddBusnes@cynulliad.cymru SeneddEcon@assemblywales
www.cynulliad cymru/SeneddBusneIUd IWaQ@%a%&SeneddEcon
0300 200 6565 0300 200 6565




trafod y sefyllfa ddydd Gwener, 22 lonawr, a bydd y Pwyllgor yn gofyn am ragor o
wybodaeth maes o law.

Mae’r Pwyllgor yn deall r6l annibynnol y cyngor cyllido, ond rhaid fod Llywodraeth
Cymru wedi cynnal rhywfaint o asesiadau effaith/risg cyn cynnig cymaint o
ostyngiad i gyllid y Cyngor ar gyfer y sector. Felly, byddai’r Pwyllgor wedi disgwyl
i’r Dirprwy Weinidog allu rhoi arwydd cliriach ynghylch blaenoriaethau
Llywodraeth Cymru. (Blaenoriaethu)

Bydd y Pwyllgor yn gofyn i’r Gweinidog ddarparu’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf amy
blaenoriaethau y mae am i Gyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru roi sylw iddynt.

Mae tystiolaeth gan y sector yn rhybuddio bod perygl difrifol iawn y bydd toriadau
o ran cyllid yn effeithio’n anghymesur ar y ddarpariaeth ar gyfer pobl sy’n dilyn
cyrsiau rhan-amser, ar waith ymchwil ac ar y pynciau drud.

Mae’r Pwyllgor yn croesawu ymateb y Dirprwy Weinidog am flaenoriaethu’r
ddarpariaeth ran-amser. Er, nodwn fod y Prif Weinidog wedi rhoi sicrwydd i’r
Pwyllgor Cymunedau, Cydraddoldeb a Llywodraeth Leol mai’r Coleg Cymraeg
Cenedlaethol oedd yn cael blaenoriaeth y diwrnod cynt. O ystyried y gostyngiad
ym maint y pot cyffredinol, mae’n ymddangos yn annhebygol y gall Cyngor Cyllido
Addysg Uwch Cymru ddiogelu blaenoriaethau lluosog yn llawn.

Mae’r dystiolaeth gan y sector Addysg Uwch yn tynnu sylw at bryderon penodol o
ran cydraddoldeb, y bydd gostyngiadau i’r ddarpariaeth addysg uwch ran-amser
yn cael effaith niweidiol ar ddysgwyr benywaidd a dysgwyr hyn.

Nododd y Pwyllgor hefyd bryderon (fforddiadwyedd) am yr effaith a gaiff y
toriadau ar gyllid ar gyfer:

* Ymchwil (QR) ac unrhyw niwed posibl i allu’r sector Addysg Uwch yng
Nghymru i gystadlu am gyllid ymchwil allanol;

= Cyllid ar gyfer pynciau drud (fel meddygaeth, deintyddiaeth a chyrsiau
Conservatoire) a’r effaith bosibl ar gyrsiau Gwyddoniaeth, Technoleg,
Peirianneg a Mathemateg (STEM) yn gyffredinol.

* Risg y bydd gostyngiadau o ran cyllid yn golygu bod sefydliadau Addysg
Uwch yng Nghymru yn llai sefydlog mewn tablau cynghrair, gan ei gwneud
yn anos i ddenu myfyrwyr a’r ffioedd dysgu sy’n gysylltiedig a hwy.

Mae’r Pwyllgor hefyd yn pryderu am effaith y gostyngiadau (10%) i gostau cynnal
Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru. Rydym yn deall fod Deddf Addysg Uwch
(Cymru) 2015 wedi sefydlu fframwaith llywodraethu newydd i’r Cyngor Cyllido ei
roi ar waith. Fodd bynnag, mae gan yr argymhellion yn adolygiad yr Athro Syr lan
Diamond (sydd i’'w gyhoeddi yn ddiweddarach eleni) ac ymateb Llywodraeth nesaf

> 2

Tudalen y pecyn 99




Cymru i’r argymhellion hyn y potensial i fod yn bellgyrhaeddol iawn, a gallent
newid rél Cyngor Cyllido Addysg Uwch Cymru a’i gylch gwaith unwaith eto.

Gyrfa Cymru

Mae’r Pwyllgor yn nodi a phryder y gostyngiad pellach i’r cyllid ar gyfer Gyrfa
Cymru. Rydym yn parhau’n bryderus bod dibyniaeth ar ddarparu digidol yn golygu
na all pobl ifanc sydd dan anfantais neu nad ydynt mewn addysg, cyflogaeth neu
hyfforddiant gael cyfle i gael cyngor annibynnol ar yrfaoedd. (Blaenoriaethu)

Prentisiaethau

Mae’r Pwyllgor yn croesawu’r arian ychwanegol ar gyfer prentisiaethau (o
gronfeydd wrth gefn ac o ganlyniad i’r cytundeb cyllidebol gyda Democratiaid
Rhyddfrydol Cymru). Rydym hefyd yn croesawu sicrwydd y Dirprwy Weinidog y
bydd digon o arian i sicrhau y bydd dechreuwyr newydd a rhai sydd eisoes ar
brentisiaeth yn gallu cwblhau eu rhaglenni. (Blaenoriaethu)

Mae’r Pwyllgor yn cydnabod ac yn rhannu pryder y Dirprwy Weinidog bod y diffyg
eglurder hyd yma ynghylch cynigion Llywodraeth y DU ar gyfer ardoll
prentisiaethau wedi achosi i Lywodraeth Cymru oedi wrth ddatblygu ei chynlluniau
ei hun ar gyfer prentisiaid a hyfforddeion.

Yn gywir,
PR <\@1\W‘”""

William Graham AC

Cadeirydd

Tudalen y pecyn 100




Tudalen y pecyn 101




Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes

National Assembly for Wales
Enterprise and Business Committee

Jocelyn Davies AC

Cadeirydd

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

18 lonawr 2016

Annwyl Jocelyn,
Cyllideb ddrafft 2016-17

Cyfarfu’r Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes ar 14 lonawr i graffu ar waith Gweinidog yr
Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth o ran cynigion y gyllideb ddrafft.

Mae ein prif bryder yn ymwneud a phroses y gyllideb.

Mae’r newidiadau yn y modd y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn cyfrifo llinell sylfaen y
flwyddyn flaenorol wedi cael effaith arbennig o fawr ar y gyllideb Economi,
Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth. Er enghraifft, mae’r gyllideb cyfalaf wedi gostwng
27.5% o gymharu a chyllideb atodol 2015-16, er ei bod wedi cynyddu 30.3% o
gymharu a’r llinell sylfaen ddiwygiedig.

Mae’r ddau ffigur yn ddilys - ond ni fu’r newid arddull yn ddefnyddiol i bwrpas
gwaith craffu effeithiol.

Er i’r Gweinidog ddarparu tabl cysoni, ac addewid i ddarparu gwybodaeth
ychwanegol amrywiol mewn ymateb i geisiadau penodol am enghreifftiau, roedd y
cyflwyniad cyffredinol yn ei gwneud yn anodd iawn i sicrhau llawer o hyder yn
fforddiadwyedd a gwerth am arian cyllideb yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a
Thrafnidiaeth. Mae ansicrwydd ynghylch yr amserlen ar gyfer Metro, y Fargen

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
J% SeneddBusnes@cynulliad.cymru SeneddEcon@agssemblywales
www.cynulliad cymru/SeneddBus-rréelda enNM\AB%QMﬂ/.\JaQ&SeneddEcon
0300 200 6565 0300 200 6565




Ddinesig a bwriadau’r Gweinidog o ran Ardrethi Busnes (y bydd hi’n gwneud
cyhoeddiad yn eu cylch yn ddiweddarach eleni) hefyd yn cymylu’r darlun.

Nododd y Pwyllgor ddau fater yn ymwneud a chyfrifoldeb ac atebolrwydd am
waith craffu pellach. Dywedwyd wrthym mai’r Gweinidog Cyllid oedd yn gyfrifol
am ymrwymiad Llywodraeth Cymru i Fargen Ddinesig Caerdydd, yn hytrach na
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth. Fodd bynnag, ymddengys
yn debygol y daw unrhyw gyfraniad gan Lywodraeth Cymru drwy gyllid - e.e.
prosiect METRO - a ddarperir gan bortffolio yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a
Thrafnidiaeth. Mae hwn yn bwnc y byddwn yn dychwelyd ato ar ol cytuno ar
fanylion y Fargen Ddinesig ac iddynt gael eu llofnodi.

Yn yr un modd, pan ofynnwyd am y prosiectau sydd i’'w cynnwys yng Ngham 2 y
Metro dywedodd y Gweinidog mai mater ar gyfer y Prif Weinidog fyddai hwn.
Mae’r rheswm dros hyn yn aneglur, gan mai rhaglen drafnidiaeth yw Metro.

Yn gywir,

W QW""‘

William Graham AC

Cadeirydd

Tudalen y pecyn 103




Julie James AC / AM ( f
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg N /

Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology /J\A

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-P-HL-1411-15 Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

William Graham AM

Chair, Enterprise and Business Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1INA

21% January 2016

Dear William,

Thank you for your e-mail of 18 January following the budget scrutiny session by the
Enterprise and Business Committee on 14 January. | have set out below responses
to your e-mail together with the additional information requested at the Committee
meeting.

Higher Education

The table below shows the forecast (as at 02/07/2012) and actual numbers of English and
international students enrolled at Welsh Higher Education Institutions (HEIs) from 2012/13
onwards. Figures shown are for full-time undergraduates. Note that 2015/16 student
numbers are not yet available and Welsh Government do not forecast non-EU international
student numbers.

Income projections for Welsh HEIs depend not only on student numbers, but also on factors
such as changes to average fees. It is, therefore, not always the case that the trend in
income forecasts will directly reflect the trend in student numbers.

Full-time undergraduate students at Welsh institutions, by domicile
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

England Forecast 29,525 29,043 28,204
Actual 30,255 30,660 30,015
Difference 730 1,617 1,811
International (non-UK EU) Forecast 2,802 2,822 2,843
Actual 2,745 2,895 3,055
Difference -57 73 212
International (non-EU) Actual 8,440 8,385 7,795

Sources: Higher Education Statistics, Student Number Projections as at
02/07/2012 (Forecasts); Higher Education Statistics Agency (Actuals)

Bae Caerdydd » Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0300 0603300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0300 0604400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Julie.James@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in qu Any COYGPPOHS(XCG recelved in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.



The difference between the forecasted student numbers ranged from 2 per cent (2012/13)
to 6 per cent (English students, 2014/15) and 7 per cent (non-UK EU students, 2014/15).
The increase in this difference reflects a diminishing accuracy of forecasts as the time
following the forecast update increases, particularly when annual changes in student
numbers are inconsistent (as has been the case in recent years).

English domicile student numbers at Welsh HEls were forecast to decrease by 2 to 3 per
cent each year from 2012/13. The actual figures show a 1 per cent increase in 2013/14,
followed by a 2 per cent decrease in 2014/15.

Non-UK EU student numbers at Welsh HEls were forecast to increase by 1 per cent

annually. The actual figures show larger annual increases of 5 per cent (2013/14) and 6 per
cent (2014/15).

Non-EU international student numbers have decreased since 2012/13, by 1 per cent in
2013/14 and 7 per cent in 2014/15.

Skills for Employment Wales

Officials are currently in discussions with Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) over the
availability of European Structural Funding (ESF), which would further enhance the overall
package available within this programme from April 2016 onwards. Outcomes for the
programme are still being discussed as part of these ongoing negotiations with WEFO.

I will provide an update to the committee on the outcomes of the programme as soon as
WEFO approval has been received.

Traineeships

Officials are currently awaiting the outcome of an independent review of Traineeship
delivery. | anticipate that this review will be published following the evaluation of the 2007-
13 European Structural Funds (ESF) Traineeship programme. Both the evaluation of the
ESF programme and the wider review of Traineeship delivery will inform ongoing policy
decisions in this area aimed at ensuring maximum value for money from future
interventions.

| will report back to the committee on the lessons that have been learnt and the findings of
the review as soon as the information is available.

| hope this response is sufficient to provide clarification on your points raised.

Yours sincerely

4

Why lamls
k
Julie James AC /| AM

Y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg
Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology

Tudalen y pecyn 105



Eitem 3.2

123 Stryd Bute

CAERDYDD

CF10 5AE

029 2065 0602
jane.lorimer@sustrans.org.uk
www.sustrans.org.uk

William Graham AM
Chair of the Business and Enterprise Committee
National Assembly for Wales
20 January 2016

Dear Mr Graham,

Thank you for the opportunity to be part of the discussions today whilst the Committee
considered delivery progress of the Active Travel Act.

My reason for writing is very specifically to address a comment which the Minister made in
relation to a statement reported in Professor Cole’s report. There was a strong suggestion in
the way that the Minister repeated the reference to Sustrans being a cycling related
organisation that the accusation and its sentiment are accepted truths.

Since Professor Cole’s report was published there has been a clarification regarding the
reported comment that the Minister may not have been aware of. The original comment was
made by a Transport Scotland official: what was actually said was that some people
[Scottish local authorities] may perceive Sustrans to be focused on cycling, however this is
not a widespread view and not one that the official herself believed to be the case. The
conversation with Professor Cole was made in the context of discussing the very successful
administration by Sustrans Scotland of the active travel infrastructure programme on behalf of
Transport Scotland.

Sustrans represents the interests of walkers and cyclists; more than two thirds of the users
of the National Cycle Network are pedestrians. We are also heavily involved influencing the
design of public realm, where we clearly advocate and bring forward design solutions for the
specific needs of improve conditions for pedestrians. Our advocacy work, technical expertise,
promotional projects (through schools, workplaces, communities) and public facing
communications (on line and printed) all deal with walking and cycling. We strongly
advocated for the Active Travel Act to be just that — we were against early ideas that the
legislation should cater solely for cycling.

| am concerned that the Committee may be left with a false perception of Sustrans as a result
of the comment being given such significance this morning, so | wanted to address this with
you immediately and ask you to share with members. Thank you.

Yours sincerely

Jane Lorimer
Director, Sustrans Cymru

Tudalenypecyn-1:06


http://www.sustrans.org.uk/

7
Edwina Hart MBE CStJ AC / AM ot ﬁ . 3
Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth '\ >

Minister for Economy, Science and Transport ‘;f
/s
Llywodraeth Cymru
William Graham AC Welsh Government
Cadeirydd

Y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru

22 lonawr 2016

Annwyl William

Disgwylir i swyddogaethau masnachfraint rheilffyrdd gael eu trosglwyddo i
Weinidogion Cymru yn 2017. Cyn hynny mae'n bwysig bod Llywodraeth
Cymru'n ymgysylltu &'r cyhoedd a rhanddeiliaid perthnasol er mwyn
datblygu manyleb ar gyfer masnachfraint newydd.

Fel rhan o'n hymrwymiad i'r ymgysylltiad hwn &'r cyhoedd, heddiw rwyf
wedi lansio ymgynghoriad sy'n gwahodd pobl i roi eu barn ar y
canlyniadau ansawdd allweddol y mae angen eu cynnwys ym manyleb
mashnachfraint nesaf Cymru a'r Gororau, gan gynnwys:

. Canlyniadau a blaenoriaethau ar gyfer gwella
. Gwasanaethau i'w darparu a'u capasiti

. Perfformiad a delio & phroblemau

. Prisiau a thocynnau

. Cerbydau

Yr ymgynghoriad hwn yw'r cam cyntaf o raglen ymgysylltu a'r cyhoedd a'r
diwydiant. Bydd adroddiad yn crynhoi'r safbwyntiau a fynegir yn y cam
hwn o'r ymarfer ymgysylltu'n cael ei baratoi a'i gyhoeddi ar 6l i etholiadau
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru gael eu cynnal ym mis Mai.

Bydd y safbwyntiau a gesglir yn yr ymarfer hwn yn cyfrannu ymhellach at
ddatblygu'r cynigion manwl a'r fanyleb ar gyfer dyfarnu Masnachfraint
newydd Cymru a'r Gororau. Bydd y fasnachfraint yn destun ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus pellach a fydd yn para am o leiaf 12 wythnos.

éolw'w»a Mant

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd - Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Gohebiaeth.edwina.Hart@cymru.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailMal@ﬁO%)pecyn 107 Printed on 100% recycled
paper



mailto:Correspondence.edwina.Hart@Wales.gsi.gov.uk

Mae Dogfen Ymgynghori Llywodraeth Cymru ar Bennu Cyfeiriad Rheilffyrdd Cymru
a’r Gororau ar gael yn y ddolen ganlynol:

http://gov.wales/docs/det/consultation/160122-wales-border-rail-franchise-

consultation-document-cy.pdf (37 tudalen)

Tudalen y pecyn 108


http://gov.wales/docs/det/consultation/160122-wales-border-rail-franchise-consultation-document-cy.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/det/consultation/160122-wales-border-rail-franchise-consultation-document-cy.pdf

Eitem 5

Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 109



	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru
	Y Briff Ymchwil

	2.1 Ymchwiliad i’r Blaenoriaethau ar gyfer Dyfodol Seilwaith y Rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru - grwpiau buddiant byd busnes a'r rheilffyrdd
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.2) Tystiolaeth gan Gynghrair Mersi a'r Ddyfrdwy (Saesneg yn unig)
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.4) Tystiolaeth gan Gyngor Gorllewin Swydd Gaer a Chaer (Saesneg yn unig)
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.5) Tystiolaeth gan Greengauge 21 (Saesneg yn unig)
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.3) Tystiolaeth gan Merseytravel (Saesneg yn unig)

	2.2 Ymchwiliad i’r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol seilwaith y rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru - grwpiau buddiant cludo nwyddau
	2.3 Ymchwiliad i’r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol seilwaith y rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru - Cyrff rheilffyrdd o Ogledd Lloegr a Gorllewin Canolbarth Lloegr
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.8) Gwybodaeth a ddarperir gan West Midlands Rail Ltd (Saesneg yn unig)

	2.4 Ymchwiliad i’r blaenoriaethau ar gyfer dyfodol seilwaith y rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru - cwmnïau gweithredu trenau
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.10) Tystiolaeth gan Great Western Railway

	3.1 Cyllideb Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2016 - 17
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.12) Llythyr oddi wrth William Graham AC at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid ynghylch sesiwn y Pwyllgor Menter a Busnes i Graffu ar y Gyllideb gyda Gweinidog yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth
	EBC(4)-03-16 (p.13) Llythyr oddi wrth y Dirprwy Weinidog Sgiliau a Thechnoleg yn dilyn y sesiwn Graffu ar y Gyllideb ar 14 Ionawr 2016 (Saesneg yn unig)

	3.2 Deddf Teithio Llesol (Cymru) 2013
	3.3 Dyfodol Masnachfraint Rheilffyrdd Cymru a'r Gororau
	5 Trafodaeth ar ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i'r Adroddiad ar Gynlluniau Trafnidiaeth yn ystod Cwpan Rygbi'r Byd

